




By investing in new projects, people,
partnerships, processes & infrastructure

development, we have focused
on creating shareholder value and 

a platform for sustained growth. 
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Our Mission
We are committed to delivering to our Shareholders the best ever
returns a listed Company has given over the first seven years of
listing. For our Employees, we are committed to creating exciting
new opportunities and a rising share of wealth. For our Business
Partners, we will be a winner to grow with. To our Customers, from
all quarters, we will deliver excellence... every time. We are a
responsible corporate citizen close to the lives of the Community. 
To the State, we are a future winner with the nation at heart.

Our Core Values
• Passion for Customer
• Obsession for Performance
• Driven by Innovation
• Concern for People
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Year Ended 31 March 2007 2006 % Change 2005
Restated Restated

Operative Results
Group Revenue Rs'000s 11,778,136 9,779,338 20.4 9,275,784 
Profit before Interest and Tax Rs'000s 1,680,111 1,529,203 9.9 1,213,220 
Profit before Tax Rs'000s 1,407,185 1,247,374 12.8 1,057,678 
Profit after Tax Rs'000s 1,019,537 965,536 5.6 832,535 
Profit attributable to the Group Rs'000s 1,005,727 958,599 4.9 836,973 
Dividend (Gross) Rs'000s 252,726 248,706 1.6 237,185 
Cash from Operations Rs'000s 176,992 1,035,785 (82.9) 1,182,366 

Balance Sheet Highlights
Total Assets Rs'000s 11,395,856 10,024,762 13.7 9,651,969 
Total Shareholders' Funds Rs'000s 5,274,139 4,319,087 22.1 3,541,973 
No. of Shares '000s 101,308 99,801 1.5 79,130 
Debt to Equity % 56.9 62.9 (9.5)   80.3 

Shareholder Information
Return on Equity % 21.10 24.40 (13.5)  26.3
Earnings per Share Rs. 9.90 9.52 4.0 8.43
Dividend per Share Rs. 2.50 2.50 -   3.0 
Dividend Payout % 25.40 26.30 (3.4)   28.5
Net Asset per Share Rs. 52.32 42.36 23.5 46.0
Market Capitalisation Rs'000s 10,831,779 11,052,988 (2.0) 8,625,121 
Price Earnings Ratio Times 10.81 11.63 (7.1)   10.8
Market Price as at 31st March Rs. 107.00 110.75 (3.4) 109.00 

Financial Highlights
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Hemas was born in 1948 as a company named Hemas (Drugs)
Limited to trade in pharmaceuticals and chemicals in the
newly independent Sri Lanka. The company began
diversifying its operations as opportunities emerged in the
1960s, first in the manufacture of toiletries in collaboration
with a French company.

With the liberalization of commerce in Sri Lanka in the late
1970s, the Group ventured into travel & tourism, commodity
exports, apparel, power, and transportation. Hemas Holdings,
the parent company of the Group went public  in 2003.

Today, Hemas Holdings has a solid reputation as one of 
Sri Lanka's foremost business houses, built around traditional
values, a dynamic management team with a futuristic vision,
a highly competitive family of employees, and a steadfast
commitment to quality and service to the community.
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Healthcare
The oldest business of the group, the Healthcare sector

benefits from over sixty years of experience coupled
with the expertise of more than thirty leading global

pharmaceutical giants. The sector is the private sector
market leader for pharmaceutical distribution.

Diversifying within the sector, the group is currently
investing in the establishment of a state of the 

art hospital.

FMCG
The conglomerate's largest sector, FMCG

manufactures and markets a range of consumer
products that have been established as well known

household brands in Sri Lanka. Backed by an ISO 9001
certified production facility, the sector also boasts of a

proliferate distribution network across Sri Lanka.

Strategic Investments
Strategic Investments in power generation

commenced with the Heladhanavi power plant in
Puttlam and expanded into hydro power generation

in line with the national policy. Investments in
Hemas House, the conglomerate's prime property

in the heart of Colombo continues to cater to
a high profile clientele.

Leisure
Hemtours is a renowned Destination Management

Company allied to a number of leading travel
operators across Europe & Asia. Hotel Serendib,

Club Hotel Dolphin and Hotel Sigiriya comprise the
sector's hospitality properties, all of which are in

strategic locations.

Transportation
The Transportation sector holds the largest market
share for airline representation. Providing a diverse
range of services, the sector also engages in travel
retailing, freight management and courier services. 

           



A good result in a year under a cloud of uncertainty.

It was a year of uncertainty about the economy. There was a new

President with a JVP partner who was drifting apart. Then a much

acclaimed bond with the UNP was stillborn. A majority

Government was achieved with crossovers but triggered rumbles

on both sides. The word cease in ceasefire melted away leaving

only fire. The international community was in ever louder tones

talking about human rights violations and the need for a political

solution. And we heard the opening bars of the chorus that aid

will come with peace.

The question that worried business was what all of this will do to

the economy.

As the months rolled along the resilience of the economy became

apparent. The strategy that began a few years back to inject

support to the informal peoples private sector that encompassed

all the activities of the rural agricultural sector and the more

traditional SME sector produced an economy that ignored the

political uncertainties and forged ahead. There was always the

nagging question of will it continue and for how long. So far it has

been sustained. The international community however refused to

close its eyes to the escalating violence and warned its citizens to

stay away. Sadly this devastated the leisure industry which can be

such a major contributor to the economic well being of the

country.

Our results reflect all of this. The sectors that are dependent on

the prosperity of the home economy did well and our major

investments in Leisure struggled and strained but had to reflect

the fact that the tourists did not come.

Overall sales grew by 20.4% and profit before tax by 12.8%. Our

CEO will tell you more about the performance in his report.

After mulling it over, your Board decided to proceed with plans for

new investments which will generate earnings in the future. This

included the plans to build a hospital, the relocation of the factory

and further investment in the Power sector. The tie up with an

excellent international Hotel and Spa operator, who has taken an

equity stake in Serendib Hotels leaves Hemas well placed to

pursue opportunities in the Leisure sector.

The confidence to proceed with our plans was based on the triple

foundation of His Excellency the President's repeated commitment

to a political solution, the APRC developing a plan for devolution,

and the repeated reminders from our friendly neighbour India to

evolve a package for a political solution. We saw in our crystal

ball the dove of peace approaching.

As I said last year Hemas is a fine example of a long standing

successful family firm, going public. The transformation from

private to public Board controlled company has been completed

with the vigorous support of the family shareholders. All the

practices of good governance are now entrenched and we looked

to the UK combined code for guidance on corporate governance.

There is a robust Audit Committee chaired by Simon Scarff. He

has wide international experience and is Chairman of Glaxo

Smithkline, India. Maithri Wickremesinghe the well known lawyer

who has a financial background as well, is the other member. 

I chair the Remuneration Committee with the support of Simon

Scarff. Like any good public company the Board sets the strategy

for management to execute and they seek the approval of the

Board on major decisions.

Chairman's Review
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...your Board decided to
proceed with plans for
new investments which

will generate earnings in
the future

   



Chairman’s
Review

Looking to the future we hope the dove of peace will come sooner

rather than later. With peace and tourists, Hemas is well placed

to generate significant incremental earnings from its investments

in the Leisure sector.

Then all parts of our business will contribute to earnings. Sadly

that could not happen this year.

Lalith De Mel

Chairman

23rd May, 2007

     



CEO’s
Review

 



It gives me great satisfaction in presenting to you the
performance of your company for the year ended 31st March
2007. The period under review can be summarised as a unique
and challenging one for both Sri Lanka and Hemas in many ways.

Posting a GDP growth of 7.4%, the economy grew in 2006 at its
fastest rate since 1978. Whilst the services sector made the
largest contribution to economic growth last year with a growth of
8.3%, the industry and agriculture sectors too contributed
handsomely with growth rates of 7.2% and 4.7% respectively. 
The year 2006 also posted the lowest ever unemployment
rate of 6.5%.

These high growth rates were however accompanied with rising
inflation and interest rates, a depreciating currency and a volatile
political environment that had a considerable impact on our
businesses. After a strong start, consumer markets witnessed a
slowdown in demand growth during the second part of the year
impacting our Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) and
Healthcare sectors, while dwindling tourist arrivals hampered the
growth of the Leisure sector.  Despite this the group posted a
satisfactory performance achieving record turnover and profits
during the year. 

Value Creation - Our Key Strategic Focus

During the period under review your company crossed the billion
rupee milestone, with profit attributable to the group closing at Rs
1,006Mn, a growth of 4.9% over last year. Group revenues
increased to close the year at Rs 11.8Bn which is a growth of
20.4% over the  previous year.

Shareholder value being the key strategic focus at Hemas, we
strive to deliver superior returns on equity on a sustainable basis
over the long-term. During 2006/07 your company has posted a
Return on Equity (ROE) of 21.1% vis-à-vis a five year average of
25.3%. As the business grows, maintaining ROE's at these high
levels is a challenge, but we are confident that the strategic
initiatives we have embarked upon will support these levels of
return over the long run.

Hemas share price closed on 31st March 2007 at Rs 107.00 and
the company paid out a gross dividend of Rs 253Mn to
shareholders during the year. 

Business Performance - Mixed Fortunes

Our largest sector, FMCG performed well registering a turnover of
Rs 3.8Bn which is a growth of 20.5% over the previous year.
Profits declined marginally to Rs 399Mn largely as a result of a
change in the sales mix and higher taxation. Our core Personal
Care  business performed satisfactorily with most of our key
brands showing strong growth. 

During the year, the sector continued to build on its diversification
strategy with the Homecare and Foods division recording an
impressive growth off a low base. The sector has identified
internationalisation of Personal Care products as an effective way
of leveraging our in-depth consumer understanding and brand
strengths. In this regard, the sector intensified its focus on
entering into regional markets by setting up an international
business unit and allocating more resources into this area.
Another initiative that commenced during the year was the
relocation of our manufacturing facilities to Dankotuwa, in order
to benefit from the tax incentives offered under the 'Nipayum
Lanka' program. Construction of a new state-of-the-art factory in
Dankotuwa has commenced and is expected to be operational
during the first quarter of the financial year commencing 
1st April 2008.

The Healthcare sector posted a top-line growth of 16.0% and a
bottom-line growth of 3.0% for the year under review, closing at a
turnover of Rs 2.9Bn and profits of Rs 141Mn. The sector
predominantly comprises of Pharmaceuticals distribution, which is
the oldest business in our group. Hemas continued to be the
market leader in private sector pharmaceutical distribution
enjoying a market share of 14.3% in a highly fragmented market.
Despite continued value addition to our service delivery, there is

CEO’s Review
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Shareholder value being
the key strategic focus at

Hemas, we strive to
deliver superior returns on

equity on a sustainable
basis over the long-term.

       



constant pressure on margins and the sector has identified
diversification into non-prescription medicine area as a key
strategy to mitigate this risk. Accordingly, the sector expanded
into the fast growing Consumer Health category through the
purchase of the 'Paracetol' brand. Paracetol is the number two
player in the analgesic market, giving the sector a solid footing
from whence it hopes to expand into other segments of the
industry. The Hospital solutions and Animal Health segments have
also been reorganised to provide more focus for growth. During
the year, Hemas progressed closer towards its Healthcare sector
Vision of becoming the 'leading provider of Healthcare products
and services' by entering the hospital industry. The first hospital of
the Hemas group will be located in Wattala, a location that was
carefully selected having taken into consideration a number of
factors that drive the demand for and supply of healthcare
services. As a parallel initiative, a service provider agreement was
entered into with a nursing school to provide trained nurses for
our hospital.

The Leisure sector experienced a volatile year recording turnover
and profits of Rs 864Mn and Rs 43Mn respectively. A significant
portion of the profits are on account of negative goodwill arising
on conversion of debentures of Serendib Hotels PLC and purchase
of shares in Mowbray Hotels Ltd. In fact, the sector showed good
performance during the first half of the year, but, unfortunately
this was wiped out during the second half on the back of travel
advisories and negative international publicity following the
escalation of hostilities in the country. Despite this negative
backdrop it was heartening to note that Minor International, the
largest hotel operator & owner in Thailand, went ahead with its
investment in Serendib Hotels PLC, where it has taken a 19.9%
stake. The strategic intent of this partnership is to bring
'Anantara', the signature brand of Minor International, to Sri
Lanka and to explore possibilities of working together in local and
overseas ventures.

Transportation sector turnover grew by 21.4% over the year to
close at Rs 507Mn while sector profits declined by 22.3% to 
Rs 102Mn. A change in the aviation industry business model
together with start up costs connected with regional expansion
contributed to the drop in sector profitability. On a positive note,
two of our new ventures - acquisition of ACX Courier during the
latter part of previous financial year and joint venture with
Hellmann Worldwide Logistics, have already begun to generate
profits. It is worth mentioning that, ACX Courier, which was a loss
making business at the time of the takeover, has been turned
around within the space of a few months.

The Heladhanavi Power Plant successfully completed two years of
commercial operations to-date. For the year under review,
Heladhanavi contributed Rs 303Mn to the Hemas bottom-line
while generating 664Mn units of electricity to the national grid.
We entered the mini-hydro sector during the year by buying out
the interests of a developer and embarking on a 2MW project in
Giddawa, Kandy. The project is expected to be completed in mid
2008 with an investment of approximately Rs 300Mn.

Building a Great Team

The talent development initiative that took place a few years back
continues to be a high priority item on the Hemas agenda. The
focus for last year was to align the competencies of the
management with the corporate objectives and strategy of the
group. To this end, a leadership competency assessment was
carried out amongst the top management with a view to providing
focused training and development targeted at each individual.

Whilst our recruitment and career development programs are
aimed at attracting and nurturing top quality talent with the
potential to become the future leaders of Hemas, our reward
systems take into account past performance & future potential,
need for retention and conditions in the job market. We endeavor
to create more opportunities for young potential leaders by giving
them early responsibility in their careers and supporting them to
succeed in challenging roles. Creating opportunities across the
group and encouraging mobility across sectors is considered an
important way by which we enrich the careers of senior
professionals.

We also believe that empowering all levels of staff enables us to
inspire them to work towards the shared vision of the company.
Projects such as 'Tharanaya' where factory staff actively
participate in the relocation plans to Dankotuwa and competitions
on creating innovative marketing plans in the FMCG sector are
examples of such activities. The number of executives who have
come up the ranks to senior positions prove the success of such
programs.   

Corporate Citizenship 

Our group is always mindful of the need to improve the quality of
life of the communities we operate in and preserve our
environment if we are to sustain the growth of our company and
our society.

CEO’s Review
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During the year, we continued to focus our energies on the area of
Early Childhood Care and Development and we now foster 32
child-friendly 'Piyawara' pre-schools island wide located from
Jaffna to Hambantota. A series of programmes were conducted in
these pre-schools in partnership with the Ministry of Child
Development and Women's Empowerment focusing on education,
training, psychosocial development, environment and healthcare.
To reach a wider audience 'Piyawara' published a handbook on
'The Child's World' which focuses on the importance of early
childhood. This was distributed free of charge island wide.  During
the year under review, Hemas also partnered with the Sri Lanka
Police to create awareness amongst young parents on the
'prevention of child abuse'. We will continue to focus on these
projects which we believe is an investment in the future
generations of Sri Lanka.  

Focus on the Future

In the past Hemas has enjoyed earnings growth mainly through
organic growth, with a few exceptions such as Power and
relatively small-scale acquisitions and partnerships. Furthermore,
almost all of the past growth has come from business interests in
Sri Lanka. Whilst organic growth would remain a key growth
mode for the existing businesses, from a group perspective a
greater emphasis on inorganic growth and internationalisation
would add a new dimension to the Hemas' corporate strategy in
the coming years. Inorganic growth in the form of acquisitions,
joint-ventures and strategic alliances are likely to feature in most
of our business expansions over the medium term.

In this context, our first hospital should be ready for operation in
2008. We believe this will set the foundation from whence we
can expand rapidly in the fast growing Healthcare sector. The
FMCG sector will continue to look for aggressive ways to grow its
Foods & Homecare business, and also to create regional markets,
whilst relocating manufacturing operations to the new facility is
expected to boost earnings in the financial year commencing April
2008. The Leisure and Transportation sectors have also been
tasked with the challenge of restructuring their business models
in order to accelerate growth and mitigate country risk.

From an internal perspective, Hemas would continue to focus on
operational excellence as it has been doing in the past. Special
emphasis would be placed on areas such as manpower
productivity, central procurement, process enhancement &
business reengineering with a view to continuously improving
effectiveness and efficiency across the group.

Conclusion

In conclusion, I wish to thank all our stakeholders, especially our
valued customers, for placing their trust and confidence in Hemas
over the years and assure them that the organization is committed
towards serving their needs better in the years to come.

Let me also thank our Chairman and my fellow Board Members for
their support and guidance. Mrs Serena Fonseka, our Group
Finance Director for many years retired in February this year. I take
this opportunity to convey my sincere gratitude for her tremendous
contribution to the group.

Our staff remain the backbone of the company and I thank
everyone of them for their unstinted support in taking on new
challenges with passion and commitment. 

Husein Esufally
Director and Chief Executive Officer

23rd May, 2007

CEO’s Review
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FMCG
Focus

Reinforcing brand equity and
diversification into Homecare and Foods

   



Branded Personal Care, Homecare & Food Products are the principal
activities of the Hemas FMCG sector, which accounts for 33% of
group Turnover and 39% of group Profits. Historically, the Personal
Care business has dominated the sector, and Hemas is the second
largest player in Sri Lanka in this category with an overall market
share of around 27%. Last year the sector focus has been to diversify
into related FMCG segments, namely Homecare and Foods through a
combined strategy of new product development and acquisitions. 

For the year under review, the sector recorded a turnover of Rs 3.8Bn
reflecting a top-line growth of 20.5%. sector profits for the year were
Rs 399Mn, a bottom-line decline of 2.3%, although operating profits

increased over the year. Profit margins of the sector were impacted
due to a change in the sales mix towards low margin Homecare &
Food products and higher taxes. Whilst we saw strong industry
growth during the year, there was a slow down in the second half of
the year. A key driver of industry growth would seem to be rural
penetration, which increased significantly.

Within Personal Care, our flagship brands Baby Cheramy and Clogard
were awarded 'Super Brand' status, giving further recognition to the
strong equity that we have already built with consumers. Our hair
care brand Kumarika did well over the year and is now the market
leader in the hair oil category. Velvet soap performed satisfactorily
over the year with a steadily increasing market share. Although our
key brands in the fragrance category performed satisfactorily, the free
availability of unregistered fragrances in the grey market provide an
impediment to growth. Together with other local manufacturers, we
have made representations to the relevant Ministry and are hopeful
that measures will be taken to provide a level playing field. We are
actively looking at leveraging our key brands in regional markets and
this effort is now headed by a senior resource person. Specific

markets have been identified and our brands are now available on a
limited basis in Pakistan.

The sector continued to grow its Homecare & Foods business with
revenues up by 144% off a small base. Diva detergent powder has a
growing franchise for its value for money offering and closed at a
market share of 12%. In the Paper category, Nimex was re-launched
and performed well during the year, consolidating its strong market
presence. In Foods, the acquisition of the Mr Pop brand has provided
us with a strong franchise in the fast growing snack category and
several activities were carried out to increase consumer appeal and trial. 

During the year, the sector finalised plans and started construction of
a new facility at Dankotuwa under the 'Nipayum Lanka' programme to
take advantage of the tax benefits offered. Whilst capitalising on tax
savings, the new facility has been designed with a view to enhance
capacity, streamline process flow and provide a better environment
for the workforce. One of the highlights of the facility will be the
'Hemas Innovation centre' which is a special purpose building within
the complex which will house the scientists and others who drive our
research efforts.

Looking forward, we are concerned that industry growth in our core
business would be stunted by high levels of inflation and a reduction
in disposable income. Our strategy would be to continue to focus on
investing in our core brands whilst launching new brands in sizeable
high growth categories where significant opportunities for
differentiation exist. We constantly look for acquisitions which make
strategic sense. A key priority in the coming year will be the
successful implementation of our relocation project.

Operational Review
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...our flagship brands Baby Cheramy and Clogard
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Healthcare
Focus

Leveraging our industry position to serve
the ever increasing demand for quality

and affordable hospital services

   



Operational Review
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The distribution of pharmaceuticals has been the predominant line
of business in the sector since its inception. Among the private
sector pharmaceutical distributors, Hemas has enjoyed market
leadership in the recent past and our agency portfolio represents
over 30 multinational and regional companies. The main highlight
for the sector during the year was the entry into Hospital Services
and Consumer Health markets. 

For the period under review, turnover was up by 16.0% to Rs
2.9Bn whilst net profits grew by 3.0% to Rs 141Mn.

The year under review was generally a challenging year for our
core business of prescription medicines with the industry growing
by 8.4% vis-à-vis 10.0% in the previous year. The business closed
the year with a market share of 14.3% (Source: IMS). During the
year the sector made a strategic entry into the fast growing
Consumer Health market by acquiring the Paracetol brand of
analgesics, the second largest brand of Paracetamol. The sector
was also successful in securing certain key agencies in the
Animal Health and Surgicals & Diagnostics areas. In order to
improve service levels to our Principals, the sector invested in a
new Sales and Re-distribution solution, which when integrated to
SAP will contribute towards greater process efficiency and better

management information. In October 2006 the sector divested its
healthcare manufacturing business in order to facilitate growth in
our core business by avoiding internal conflicts within our agency
portfolio.

During the year the sector commenced construction of its first
hospital in Wattala. This is the outcome of our strategic alliance
with Columbia Asia, a regional hospital operator. This 100-bed
multi specialty secondary care facility is expected to commence
operations in mid 2008. The sector also entered into an

agreement with a Ministry of Health certified nursing school to
train a batch of 70 nurses to provide the first intake when the
hospital opens in mid 2008.

Looking at the year ahead, we will focus on building the
Consumer Health and other non-prescription categories in order to
augment growth of our core pharmaceutical business. Successful
management of the Wattala Hospital project will be vital in the
context of building a wider presence in this industry, and will be a
top priority for the sector.

The main highlight for the sector during the year was the
entry into Hospital Services and Consumer Health markets. 
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Leisure
Focus

Strategic partnerships to improve yields
and explore new opportunities overseas
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Hemas Holdings Annual Report 2006 / 0717

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd, a fully owned subsidiary of Hemas, together
with Serendib Hotels Group, a 63% owned subsidiary
(shareholding reduced to 50% subsequent to the private issue of
shares to Minor Interntional PCL) , constitutes the Hemas Leisure
sector. During the first half of the year, the industry showed signs
of revival and concurrently the sector performed relatively well to
achieve satisfactory results. The First Choice Charter from UK
brought in more than 250 tourists every fortnight, giving a boost to
the arrivals and earnings of both Hemtours and the Serendib

group. However, during the latter half of the year, the industry
suffered a serious blow as a result of heightened security
concerns. The consequent adverse travel advisories and negative
international publicity led to tourist arrivals for the year ending
8% below the previous year, whilst hotel occupancies were
disappointingly low. 

For the financial year under review the sector achieved a turnover
of Rs 864Mn and a net profit of Rs 43Mn. It should be noted that
a significant portion of the profit for the year was due to negative
goodwill arising pursuant to the purchase of shares in Mowbray
Ltd and the conversion of debentures in Serendib Hotels.

The performance of Club Hotel Dolphin, which posted impressive
results in a difficult environment, was an exception to the general

trend in the industry. Key factors behind Dolphin's success last
year were the close proximity to the airport, the ability to cater to
large tourist groups, the diversity within the property, and the
popularity amongst Sri Lankan groups. The consistent delivery of
product and service quality by Club Hotel Dolphin to its target
market was signified by the First Choice Gold Award won by the
hotel for the second consecutive year.

A highlight for the year was the strategic partnership with the
Minor group of Thailand to reposition and re-brand the Serendib

group of Hotels. Under this partnership, Hotel Serendib was the
first property that was to be re-branded as an Anantara Resort,
which is the flagship resort hotel brand of the Minor group.
However, this was deferred until such time industry prospects
appear brighter and revenue projections can be validated. Despite
the postponement of this project, the Minor group went forward
with its investment of a 19.9% stake in Serendib Hotels Ltd, thus
reaffirming its strategic intent to partner with Hemas and
displaying its faith in Sri Lanka as a growth destination.

Going forward, the sector will look to the region to expand its
portfolio and mitigate the single destination risk, whilst focusing
on service excellence and productivity to maximise returns. 

A highlight for the year was the strategic partnership with
the Minor group of Thailand to reposition and re-brand the

Serendib group of Hotels. 
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Transportation
Focus

Leveraging the capabilities of our
network partners to enter overseas
markets and new industry segments

   



Operational Review
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Airline Representation, Travel Agency Operations, Freight
Forwarding and Courier Services are the principal activities of the
Hemas Transportation sector. For the year under review, the sector
focus has been to streamline internal processes with a view to
enhance operational efficiencies and enter regional markets.

The Transportation sector as a whole experienced a challenging
year on the back of intense competition coupled with a change in
the business model in the aviation industry. For the financial year
under review the sector recorded a turnover of Rs 507Mn and a

net profit of Rs 102Mn, reflecting a top-line growth of 21.4% and
a profit decline of 22.3%.

We continue our market leadership in Airline Representation, and
our GSA's, Emirates and Malaysia Airlines, displayed growth in
both passenger and cargo categories. The rest of the portfolio,
which comprises LTU, Alitalia, Kenya Airways, and British
Midland, also performed satisfactorily during the year.

Travel Agency operations showed an overall growth in turnover,
leading to an increased market share, thereby strengthening its
competitive position within the industry. The company was able to
minimise the impact of the introduction of the Business
Settlement Plan (BSP) by implementing a thorough and effective
strategy to enhance control of  working capital requirements. The

strategic initiative to offer an array of value added services
resulted in the expaided of the customer base. 

The Freight Forwarding business reported a growth in overall
volume and turnover. Our partnerships with global networks have
facilitated the establishment of our business in the growing
markets of India and Pakistan. The initial financial outlay in
setting up the South Asian venture has impacted overall profits
earned in this segment. However, these investments are expected
to yield considerable earnings in the years ahead.

ACX International, the courier operator which was acquired by
Hemas in the latter part of the previous financial year staged a
remarkable turnaround in business volumes and profitability
within a space of a few months. By entering into global strategic
partnerships, the company is poised to enter a period of
accelerated growth. In support of this, strategic investments will
be made in technology upgrades and infrastructure during the next
financial year. 

Going forward, the sector will be exploring new opportunities in
the areas of ports, maritime and logistics whilst strengthening the
regional expansion of freight operations in its quest to becoming a
leading regional player in the transportation industry.

Our partnerships with global networks have facilitated the
establishment of our business in the growing markets 

of India and Pakistan.
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Strategic Investments
Focus

Investment in renewable energy projects

   



Operational Review
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Power

Hemas marked its entry into the Power sector when Heladhanavi
Ltd (a joint venture with Lakdhanavi Ltd) signed a 10-year power
purchase agreement with the Ceylon Electricity Board to supply
power to the national grid. The 100MW Thermal Power Plant in
Puttalam commenced commercial operations in October 2004, and
is currently in its third year of operation. During the year under
review the power plant has contributed 664Mn units to the
national grid. 

The key focus area for the Power sector during the year was the
acquisition and development of the 2MW Mini-Hydro Power Plant
in Giddawa, Kandy. This Rs 300Mn project is expected to be up
and running in mid 2008.

For the year under review, the Power sector recorded a turnover of
Rs 3.6Bn and net profits of Rs 303Mn, reflecting a top-line growth
of 25.9% and a bottom-line growth of 15.3%. The high growth in
profits is mainly attributable to lower operational and finance
expenses.

Thermal power continues to bridge the demand gap for power and
the status quo would most likely remain over the medium-term.
However, the long-term national policy points to an increase in the

percentage of power generated from renewable sources such as
hydro, wind, bio mass etc. As such, the long-term focus of Hemas
would be to actively pursue investment opportunities in the area
of renewable energy and to make a significant contribution
towards the national policy and ultimately the consumer.

Property

Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd, a fully owned subsidiary of Hemas
Holdings, is the owner and operator of Hemas House, an eleven

storied office complex with modern facilities. Hemas House
continues to maintain 100% occupancy by a prestigious clientele
of local and international companies.

Situated in a prime location at Braybrooke Place, the locality has
seen rapid development with several high rise buildings under
construction. This has resulted in a significant appreciation in the
market value over the last few years. Given its prime location and
the ongoing efforts by management to maintain and add value,
the building is expected to be fully occupied in the ensuing years
thus generating a stable of cash flows.

The key focus area for the Power sector during the year was
the acquisition and development of the 2MW mini-hydro

power plant in Giddawa, Kandy.

      



Group Financial Review 2006/7

Hemas Holdings Ltd. reported Consolidated Earnings of Rs
1,005.7Mn, reflecting a growth of 4.9% over the previous year,
and posted an Earnings per Share of Rs 9.90 showing an increase
of 4.0%. The Return on Equity was a healthy 21.1% while the
Return on Capital Employed was 22.3%.

Group Revenue

For the year under review, Group Revenues increased by 20.4%,
from Rs 9.8Bn to Rs 11.8Bn. All Sectors except the Leisure Sector
made a sizeable contribution towards Revenue growth by posting
top-line growth rates exceeding 15%.

Profitability & Growth

When compared with the previous financial year, overall profit
margins have declined due to the following reasons:

• A drop in gross margins as a result of the shift in the sales mix
towards low margin businesses.

• An increase in the overhead base due to increased IT and SAP
related expenditure causing administration expenses to
increase by 27%.

• An increase in the effective tax rate from 22.4% in 05/06 to
27.5% due to the lack of investment relief benefits vis-à-vis
the previous year causing the tax expense to increase by
37.5%.

• Development expenditure charged to the income statement
with regard to new business projects in FMCG, Healthcare 
and Transportation Sectors.

As a result, the Group Profits have not been able to match the
pace at which Group Revenues have grown over the year, as
presented in the table below:

Annual Growth Profit Margin Profit Margin

06/07 06/07 05/06

Group Revenue 20.4% - -

Gross Profit 10.1% 31.7% 34.7%
Operating Profit 9.8% 14.2% 15.6%
Profit before Tax 12.8% 11.9% 12.8%
Group Earnings 4.9% 8.5% 9.8%

Underlying Growth

Underlying Earnings, (defined as Group Earnings before taking into
account non-recurrent items such as any capital gains and losses,
negative goodwill and one-off tax benefits) have grown by 25%
over the year. However non-recurrent profits have declined by
71%, reducing the Overall Earnings growth to a mere 4.9%. This
was due to the notable absence of investment relief tax benefits
during the year as against the previous year.

Capital Utilization

Capital employed has increased from Rs 6.9Bn to Rs 8.2Bn,
reflecting a growth of 18.5% in the capital base. Return on 
Capital Employed (ROCE) has dropped to 22.3% during 2006/07
from 22.9% in the previous year, on account of margin reductions
explained earlier, and a higher capital base, a part of which is
invested in new business projects, which are yet to generate
returns. However, we are confident that ROCE would improve
once the new businesses commence to generate positive 
cash flows.

As the total equity base increased by 22.1% over the year from Rs
4.3Bn to Rs 5.3Bn, the Return on Equity (ROE) has declined from
24.4% to 21.1%. Effective tax rate has shown a significant
increase, from 22.6% to 27.5%, and the average financial

Financial Review
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leverage during last year has been lower than that of the previous
year. As a result the marginal drop in ROCE last year is translated
into a larger drop in ROE. The average ROE of the Group over the
last five years has been 25.3% and it is indeed a challenge to
maintain returns at these high levels. However, new business
projects that we have currently embarked on are expected to
contribute positively to the overall ROE in the coming years.

Cash Flows & Dividends

Cash flow from Operating Activities has significantly reduced as a
result of increased working capital tied up in operations in
addition to the factors that contributed to the decrease in net
margins.

Hemas has maintained a gross dividend payout ratio of 25.4% for
the year ended 31 March 2007, as against a payout ratio of 26.3%
in the previous year. The gross dividend payment for the year was
Rs 253Mn compared to Rs 249Mn in 2005/06.

Financial Review
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Husein Esufally Simon Scarff Debu Bhatnagar Imtiaz Esufally

  



Husein Esufally

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. H.N. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in
Electronics from the University of Sussex, U.K. He was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer in 2001 and has management
experience of over 20 years. He was instrumental in building the
FMCG business to its current status. He is also a Trustee at the
National Council for Mental Health (Sahanaya).

Abbas Esufally

Mr. A.N. Esufally is a Fellow of both the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka and is an all Island Justice of Peace. He
is the Head of the Leisure sector and Chairman of Serendib Hotels
Ltd. He has experience of over 30 years in Sri Lanka and overseas
and has been in the forefront of the leisure industry in Sri Lanka.
He is the Honorary Consul General of Bhutan in Sri Lanka.

Imtiaz Esufally

Mr. I. A. H. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting and Economics from the University of Kent, UK. He
heads the Group’s Transportation sector and has over 20 years
sector specific experience in Sri Lanka and overseas. He is a Past
President of the International Association of Travel Agents and
has held many industry related positions.

Debu Bhatnagar 

Mr. D. Bhatnagar is a Graduate in Mechanical Engineering from
the Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur, India with an MBA in
Marketing from the Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta,
India. He has over 25 years of experience with multinational
companies such as Unilever, Benckiser, Phillips and ICI. He heads
the FMCG sector of the Group.

Murtaza Esufally

Mr. M.A.H. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Law degree from
University of Essex, UK. He is a Barrister-at-Law (Lincoln’s Inn) and
is an Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He is a
Director of the Centre for Poverty Analysis. He has served as the
Head of the Hemas Apparel business for 14 years. He is also the
Chairman of Hemas Hospitals Pvt Ltd.

Serena Fonseka

Resigned with effect from February 14th, 2007

Ms. M.S. Fonseka is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, U.K. and a Member of the Certified
Management Accountants, Australia. She has management
experience of over 20 years, both in Sri Lanka and overseas.

Non Executive Directors
Lalith de Mel

Chairman

Mr. L. de Mel has a Master of Arts Degree from Cambridge
University, UK. He counts over 40 years Board experience having
served as a Director of several companies in Sri Lanka and
abroad. He has served most of his career at Reckitt Benkiser Plc,
UK and was the Global Director -Pharmaceuticals before his
retirement in 1999. He has served as the Chairman of the Board of
Investment and the Chairman of Sri Lanka Telecom Limited. He
holds directorships in many other companies.

Simon Scarff

Mr. S. Scarff is a British National with wide international
experience in several multinational companies operating in the
consumer/healthcare business. He has served as Managing
Director of Glaxo Smithkline Consumer Health Care Ltd, India. He
was awarded the MBE in 1984 for his services to the British
community in India and an OBE in 1999 for his service to British
industry. He continues to serve on the boards of several other
companies and trusts.

Maithri Wickremesinghe

Mr. M. E. Wickremesinghe is an Honours Graduate in Law from
the University of Colombo, an Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme
Court of Sri Lanka and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. He is a
practicing Attorney-at-Law specialising in Corporate Law with
extensive experience in Corporate Finance and Financial
Structuring. He has lectured at the Faculty of Law of the
University of Colombo, at the University of Moratuwa and the
Kotalawela Defense Academy.

Board of Directors
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Group Management
Committee

Abbas Esufally
Director - Hemas Holdings PLC

Mr. A.N. Esufally is a Fellow of both the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and is an all
Island Justice of Peace. He is the Head of the Leisure sector
and Chairman of Serendib Hotels Ltd. He has experience of
over 30 years in Sri Lanka and overseas and has been in the
forefront of the leisure industry in Sri Lanka.  He is the
Honorary Consul General of Bhutan in Sri Lanka.

Debu Bhatnagar 
Director - Hemas Holdings PLC

Mr. D. Bhatnagar is a Graduate in Mechanical
Engineering from the Indian Institute of Technology,

Kanpur, India with an MBA in Marketing from the Indian
Institute of Management, Calcutta, India. He has over 25

years of experience with multinational companies such
as Unilever, Benckiser, Phillips and ICI. He heads the

FMCG sector of the Group.

Edward Fernando
Managing Director - Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd

Mr E. Fernando holds a Professional Postgraduate Diploma in
Marketing (CIM - UK) and counts 15 years of sales and
marketing experience in the Airline industry both locally and
overseas and 4 years in the freight management industry . He is
a member of the Executive Committee of the Sri Lanka Freight
Forwarders' Association,  and the past Deputy Chairman of the
Sri Lanka Association of Airline Representatives.

Harith Perera
Managing Director – Hemtours (Pte) Ltd

Mr H. Perera holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Marketing (CIM - UK).
He counts nearly 16 years of Sales and Marketing experience in both

Financial Services & FMCG.  He is also in the Alumina Associations
of 02 prestigious Indian Business Schools namely Indian Institute of

Management (IIM) - Ahemadebad & Indian Schools of Business (ISB)
-  Hyderabad. He was a guest lecturer at Sri Lanka Institute of

Marketing (SLIM) & was also an Executive Committee member of
SLIM for 04 years. 
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Husein Esufally
Director  - Hemas Holdings PLC and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. H.N. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Electronics from
the University of Sussex, U.K. He was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer in
2001 and has management experience of over 20 years. He was instrumental in
building the FMCG business to its current status. He is also a Trustee at the
National Council for Mental Health (Sahanaya).

Imtiaz Esufally
Director - Hemas Holdings PLC

Mr. I. A. H. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting and Economics from the University of Kent, UK. He
heads the Group’s Transportation sector and has over 20 years

sector specific experience in Sri Lanka and overseas. He is a Past
President of the International Association of Travel Agents and has

held many industry related positions.

Isuru Tillakawardana
Director - Group Human Resources

Mr. Isuru S. Tillakawardana holds a MBA from the Post Graduate Institute of
Management of the University of Jayewardenepura, a Degree in Law from the
University of Colombo and a Diploma in International Affairs (BCIS). He has over
10 years experience in Human Resource Management and another 10 years in
business operations in Financial Services. He is a visiting lecturer at the
University of Colombo, and a Member of the Society for Human Resource
Management USA.

Jude Fernando
Director – Supply Chain Management

Hemas FMCG sector

Mr. Jude Fernando is a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA), UK, and a member of the

Chartered Institute of Marketing ( CIM), UK. He is currently reading
for his MBA from the University of Wales. He accounts for 15 years

of management experience in the field of Finance, Supply Chain
Management and International Marketing.

Group Management Committee
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Kasturi Chellaraja Wilson
Chief Process Officer 

Ms. Kasturi Chellaraja Wilson is an Associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA). She has 19
years experience in Auditing, Consulting and Finance. Her
management experience spans the industries of Financial Services,
Hospitality, Courier and Freight Forwarding. She is also the Head of
the Financial & Accounting Shared Services Centre for the Group.

Kishan Nanayakkara
Managing Director - Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd

Mr. K. Nanayakkara is a fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (CIMA), UK, and holds an

MSc in Finance from the Birmingham Business School of
the University of Birmingham, UK. He has held several

senior management positions in companies ranging from
manufacturing to financial services. 

Malinga Arsakularatne
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. M. Arsakularatne is a Chartered Financial Analyst and an Associate
Member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
(CIMA), UK. He also holds an MSc in Investment Management from the
City University Business School, UK, a BSc in Computer Science &
Engineering from the University of Moratuwa, Sri Lanka, and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Marketing from the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (CIM), UK. He has 8 years of experience in the fund
management industry.

Murtaza Esufally
Director - Hemas Holdings PLC

Mr. M.A.H. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Law degree from University of Essex,
UK. He is a Barrister-at-Law (Lincoln’s Inn) and is an Attorney-at-Law of the

Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He is a Director of the Centre for Poverty Analysis.
He has served as the Head of the Hemas Apparel business for 14 years. He is

also the Chairman of Hemas Hospitals Pvt Ltd.

Group Management Committee
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Neville Ruwanpathirana
Director – Foods & Homecare
Hemas FMCG sector

Mr. N. Ruwanpathirana holds an MBA from the University of Colombo and a BSc
(Special Degree in Chemistry) from the University of Peradeniya. He holds a
Diploma from the Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK and is also a Chartered
Chemist. He has management experience ranging from R&D, Production ,Sales ,
Brand Marketing to General Management  during the carrier of over 25 years both
at Unilever and at Hemas.

Srilal Miththapala
CEO – Serendib Leisure Management PLC

Mr. Srilal Miththapala holds a BSc (Electrical Power Engineering) from the
University of Moratuwa. He is a Chartered Electrical Engineer, and a Fellow of

the Institute of Electrical Engineers, London  and a member of Chartered
Institute of Management, UK. He is an International Professional Review

Interviewer for the Institute of Electrical Engineers, London. He has over 25 years
of management experience in the mercantile sector in Sri Lanka at several senior
management positions and directorships. He is currently the Vice President of the

Tourist Hotels Association of Sri Lanka (THASL).  

Suren R. Rajanathan
Managing Director - Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd

Mr Suren R. Rajanathan holds an MBA from the Postgraduate Institute of
Management, University of Sri Jayawardenepura. He is the immediate past
Chairman of The Chartered Institute of Marketing Sri Lanka Region and is a
Chartered Marketer. He has over 19 years of experience in leading multinational
companies such as Pfizer, Smithkline Beecham, 3M and General Electric.  

Group Management Committee
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS

At Hemas we believe that profit generation is only one aspect of
measuring commercial success. We also believe in honouring
ethical values, respecting the community & caring for the natural
environment. The 'Piyawara' programme is the primary Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) project of Hemas Holdings. The project
focuses on promoting Early Childhood Care & Development (ECCD)
through the establishment of child friendly pre-schools across 
Sri Lanka. 'Piyawara' is now an integrated educational programme
making a valuable contribution to the development of the overall
government educational system. The program goes beyond
building bricks and mortar to developing a holistic approach to
pre-school education. 

The programme is founded on a comprehensive strategy with a
focus on the key areas of ECCD in collaboration with the Ministry
of Child Development & Women's Empowerment. Our strategic
partner has heavily supported us in the implementation of the
project. The project has been well branded and is driven by a
mission.  The Key success factors were identified in order to
ensure sustainability and success of the project included
developing the existing infrastructure, teacher training, parental
awareness and mobilizing the community. The 'Piyawara'
programme has been subdivided into four main themes;
Education, Psychosocial development, Environment and Health.
These programmes have been altered to suit the needs of our
target audience that has been categorized as employees,
community and society at large. Over the last five years our
dedication to pre-school education has intensified. We believe
that the creation of child friendly pre-schools sets a sound
foundation to encourage life long learning.

The ECCD programme 'Piyawara' commenced in the year 2003
with the establishment of 10 model pre-schools in ten districts. In

early 2004 the project expanded to include a total of 13 pre-
schools covering 3 more districts. 100 teachers from each of these
districts were trained by Hemas in accordance to the 'Piyawara'
schools model. In the 2004 Tsunami hundreds of pre-schools were
severely damaged or fully destroyed and over 42,000 pre-school
aged children were affected by the disaster. Hemas responded to
the government's appeal for assistance to rebuild the tsunami
affected areas by stepping up the efforts and dedication to
continue with its focus on ECCD and volunteered to venture into a
major project related to pre-school education. Through the Hemas
Tsunami Foundation, our early intervention in the transitional area
provided tremendous systematic support. In the first phase 27
temporary pre-schools were set up in refugee camps and the
second phase was to build 20 state of the art pre-schools in
tsunami affected areas.  This project was concluded by 2006. Year
2006 saw the project taking a leap ahead in the area of Early
Childhood Care and Development with the establishment of 32
pre-schools in the country. 

The following were the key activities carried out during the year;

• Despite many constraints, Hemas tsunami foundation was
able to successfully complete the construction of the  pre-
schools in tsunami affected areas in a short time frame. To
coincide with the declaration of the national year for
children, a symbolic handover of the newly built 20 pre-
schools was made to His Excellency the President of Sri
Lanka, Mahinda Rajapakse. 

• In addition to the 'Piyawara' model schools, 24 under
developed pre-schools were provided with a child-friendly
play area to broaden the project.  These underdeveloped pre-
schools are being fostered by 'Piyawara' model centers by
providing professional guidance by well trained teachers.  

• Each pre-school child in 'Piyawara' centers was gifted with a
plant. The concept was to teach young children to undertake
responsibility at a young age and care for nature.  The
progress of this project is being monitored by the teachers,
where they encourage the children to talk of their experience
in nurturing the plant. 

• Consistency and sustainability of the 'Piyawara' project was
ensured through the annual six day residential teacher
training programme held in Colombo. Over 100 teachers
participated in this residential training programme which was
conducted in both Sinhala and Tamil languages. 
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• The efforts of the various institutions and persons involved in
the project was recognized at the annual 'Piyawara' Awards
Ceremony. Special awards were presented to Ven.
Bandagiriye Somawansa Thero, -Director of the National
Foundation for Children, and prominent child psychologist- for
his outstanding contribution to ECCD in Sri Lanka. The
Ambalangoda Urban Council was awarded the best managed
'Piyawara' pre-school by a local council. In addition six
teachers of the 'Piyawara' schools also received special
awards in recognition of their contribution to ECCD.

• A documentary was produced featuring the learning process
in the tsunami pre-school project for future reference. The
documentary included information regarding setting up
temporary schools in refugee camps, the process of
constructing of new schools and comments and opinions of
various people including parents, government officials,
counselors etc. 

• Piyawara utilized the radio - a popular channel of
communication in rural areas- to spread the message of early
childhood care tips.  Each message was aired daily on the Sri
Lanka Broadcasting Corporation nationwide. The channels
were carefully directed by the Hemas CSR team to tailor the
message to suit the key target audience in the rural
community of Sri Lanka.

• A hand book titled; ”The Child's World” was launched by
Hemas 'Piyawara' project. The booklet focuses on the
importance of early childhood and deals with prenatal,
postnatal care and early childhood care during the first five
years of development. They were distributed free of charge
by the Ministry of Child Development through the ECCD
officers based in each Divisional Secretariat of the country.
The books were given to young parents and pre-school
teachers. The books were printed in both Sinhala and Tamil
languages to reach a wider audience.

• Parental awareness programmes were conducted in all
Piyawara centers island wide, in partnership with  the
Ministry of Child Development. A child spends majority of the
time at home and only for a few hours in the pre-school each
day. Therefore it is essential to provide a home environment

that is not detrimental to a child's growth and development
(free of domestic violence, alcohol, mother migration). Hence,
it is vital to focus on programmes and interventions that
make a difference for children in their homes.   

• In order to minimize the alarming rate of child abuse, Hemas
together with the Sri Lanka Police Bureau worked for the
prevention of abuse of children and women and conducted
many awareness programmes island wide. 

• An independent research of the Piyawara project was
conducted by Dr. Buddhipraba Pathirana, lecturer of
psychology at Peradeniya University.  She has concluded that
pre-schools and pre-school teachers achieved a significant
progress due to this programme.

• Efficient management of the newly built  Piyawara pre-
schools in the tsunami affected areas was achieved by
establishing parent teacher associations, with a formal
constitution in place for each school. The required funding
was provided through a grant of Rs. 50,000/- per school as a
fixed deposit. Minor repairs and maintenance expenses are
to be met with this funding and self funding has been
encouraged through school fairs, concerts etc.

• Hemas Pharmaceuticals and Clogard sponsored pediatric /
dental clinics in the 'Piyawara' centers.

• Hemas was a key sponsor of the World Children's Day
organized by the Ministry of Child Development and
Women's Empowerment.  
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The management case study conducted by USAID on Hemas
Holdings and in its CSR observations states “The 'Piyawara'
project is a huge undertaking executed with an integrated holistic
community approach that is a benchmark for Corporations to
study. 

We believe that focus, commitment , empowerment and passion
are key to a successful project of this nature and our commitment
to ECCD will be the focal point through of our CSR activities in 
Sri Lanka in the years ahead. We hope our initiatives will make
the future generations more productive in a much more cordial
and harmonious environment. 
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Piyawara has been an eye opener.  We
have seen the results and the changes in

behaviour not only of the teachers,
students and parents, but from the entire

community.  There has been complete
community involvement with senior

citizens and the entire village community
coming forward to assist the schools
whenever the need arose.  Having the
commitment permeated right from the

Chairman, CEO and Board of Directors to
each and every employee of Hemas
Holdings, has also strengthened the
obligation we have about taking this
project to its fruition. We have seen

immense dedication by the entirety of the
Children's Secretariat, where have been
expedited speedily, decisions made and
public holidays being no barrier to work.
This dedication is hard to find anywhere
and from Hemas point of view, these will

strengthen the relationship while creating
a partnership that will give the ECCD's in

Sri Lanka a milieu to ensure the full
potential of a child, ensuring complete

cognitive, physical, social and emotional
development.

  



EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

At Hemas our most valuable asset is our employees and our core
belief is that by nurturing their growth and well-being we can
deliver outstanding shareholder value.  The relationship between
our family of employees and the company as a financial entity is
mutually beneficial. Thus, as Hemas grows we provide exciting
growth opportunities for our employees. We achieved this goal by
launching a series of focused initiatives which promote employee
development and talent management. This augurs well for the
future of our company. 

Individual Development Centers (IDC)

The concept of IDC's emerged as a result of several intense
studies of the core competencies which contribute to Hemas'
competitive advantage. Seven key competencies were identified
based on which the top management of our company was
evaluated. Based on these results, a comprehensive development
plan was formulated to foster individualized long-term personal
development. 

Training and Development

We focus on employee Training & Development at all levels of the
organization. We focus on both 'soft' and 'hard' skills in order to
develop a suitable pool of managers who will lead our company to
its future success. As a diversified company we encourage our
employees to gain a well-rounded and holistic knowledge of the
functioning of our various sectors providing them with a range of
career development opportunities. Our management trainee
program is aimed at attracting the top talent available in the Sri-
Lankan labour market. We offer these new recruits clear and fast-
track career paths where they achieve their potential while
contributing to achieving the organizational goals. At Hemas we
encourage our employees to voice their opinions. There ideas and
feedback are constantly implemented, helping us refine our
operational level processes to achieve efficiency.  We have
planned a number of activities and events throughout the year to
cater to employee well-being and recreation. 

Rewards

We believe that a system of equitable and competitive rewards
act both a motivator and is consistent with our core belief of
fostering employee growth. Thus, we have a long-standing
tradition of rewarding our employee's outstanding achievements
and contributions. The prestigious CEO's Award is one such award
where the management is recognized for their outstanding
contributions towards achieving Hemas' corporate goals.

We hope to continue these development initiatives in the years to
come to ensure that we attract and retain top quality talent to
guarantee the continuous success of Hemas.   
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ENVIRONMENT 

At Hemas we place high emphasis on applying good
environmental practices by focusing on environmentally friendly
production techniques and processes to conserve the natural
environment for future generations. 

We have implemented environmentally friendly technology at our
soap manufacturing plant to avoid releasing harmful effluents to
the environment.  Emissions from the Heladhanavi power plant
are tightly controlled and there is no smoke evident from the
smokestack. A 'green belt' comprising of 3,000 acacia trees are
grown in the periphery of the power plant. Two lakes in the
perimeter collects rainwater harvested through a drainage
network that runs throughout the site and this water is used to
irrigate the landscaped gardens. 

Over the years our Hotels have taken many key initiatives to
conserve and protect the environment.  During the period under
review many new initiatives were introduced at hotel Sigiriya
under the guidance of Dr. Sriyani Miththapala, -Sri Lanka's leading
conservation Biologist and Environmentalist. - These conservation
and environmental initiatives have been internalized and
integrated to our corporate strategy. We have initiated a
comprehensive range of conservation programmes, supported by
regular environmental audits and sustained by the ongoing
training and development for our staff. The initiatives
implemented include; 

• Conserving energy

• Conserving water

• Minimising solid waste

• Minimising green house gas emissions and air pollution

• Minimising other chemical pollution

• Maximising practices of reducing, recycling and reusing

• Maximising the use of environmental friendly material

• Maximising indigenous flora in landscaping and eradicating
invasive alien species

• Conserving biodiversity

In addition to these efforts we have initiated a programme named
'Polythene free Sigiriya'. This programme will be launched in June
2007. Eco friendly bins -developed in accordance with the Central
Cultural Fund regulations- will be placed in public areas to
eradicate damage caused by dumping polythene and garbage in a
historical site.  Arrangements have been made with the Dambulla
Local Council for regular garbage collection.  We have also
developed a documentary highlighting the importance of
preserving our cultural heritage and protecting the environment.
This will be used as a tool to support the awareness programmes
we plan to conduct in the villages and schools in June 2007.

We are conscious of the need to proactively work towards
minimizing damage to the environment in our business activities
as well as engage in programs to protect it. It is a journey that we
will continue on, relentlessly into the future.
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Financial
Focus



In keeping with the key concepts of corporate governance, Hemas
has been structured and controlled internally to ensure that
business is run lawfully and ethically, with due regard  for its
employees and stakeholders.  Hemas has strived to maintain
transparency when reporting on both financial and non-financial
information such as the strategic objectives of the Company.
Procedures and structures are in place to minimize potential
conflicts of interest.  

A comprehensive set of  rules and guidelines for ethical conduct
has been established for both Directors as well as employees
with a view to sustain the corporate culture of the Company.   

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors include the setting
out of strategic aims, providing  leadership to put them into effect,
supervising the management of the business and reporting to the
shareholders.    

The Board meets every two months, to monitor the performance
of the executive management. A formal schedule of matters is
specifically reserved for its decision. Control over the Company is
exercised collectively by the Board of Directors. In addition, it has
sought to improve the selection and appointment of non-executive
directors to bring greater independence and objectivity to decision
-making.

BOARD BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board includes six Executive Directors and three Non-
Executive Directors with a balance of skills and experience which
is appropriate for the requirements of the business. 

The names of the Directors who served during the year under
review are disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Messrs Lalith De Mel, Maithri Wickremesinghe and Simon Scarff
hold Office as  Non-Executive Directors. 

THE CHAIRMAN

With a view to have a proper balance of power on the Board, the
post of Chairman and Chief Executive have been separated with
clear roles defined for each. 

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board ensuring
its effectiveness on all aspects of its role. The Chairman also
facilitates the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors in

particular and ensures constructive relations between Executive
and Non-Executive Directors.

INFORMATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Board is supplied with timely information in a form and
quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties effectively.
The Directors seek clarification or amplification where necessary.

All Directors receive an induction and the Company provides the
necessary resources for developing  and updating their knowledge
and capabilities.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

A formal and rigorous annual evaluation of its performance is
undertaken by the individual members of the Board, at the end of
each financial year. Individual evaluation aims to measure each
Director's  effective contribution and commitment. 

APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD AND RE-ELECTION

Appointments to the Board are made collectively and with the
consent of all Board members. As per the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, a Director so appointed
retires at the Annual General Meeting following his appointment
and is eligible for re-election.  

At every Annual General Meeting, one third of the Directors retire
by rotation, with the exception of the CEO. They are however,
eligible for re-election subject to shareholder approval. 

CODE  OF ETHICS

In keeping with honest business practices, Hemas has adopted  a
company wide code of ethics to assist the Board of Directors of
the group in complying with corporate policies and the Law. 

The key elements of the code are:

• Protecting the good name of the Company

• Avoiding  common sources of conflict

• Guidelines for social activities

• Dealing with financial conflicts arising from relationships with
suppliers

• Avoiding personal or secret profits 

• Non personal conflicts

• Conflict of duty and interest

Corporate Governance
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A code on ethical standards has also been established and is
applied to guide all employees on acceptable conduct. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee manages the day-to-day operations of
the Company  and prepares an annual strategic plan  for approval.
The Committee meets each month to monitor the actual
performance  against projections and any changes are reported to
the Board for their review.        

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board believes that it is of prime importance to present a
balanced and understandable assessment which extends to
interim and other price sensitive public reports and reports to
regulators as well as  information required to be presented by
statutory requirements.

The financial statements are prepared and presented in
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards , the rules
and regulations of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the
Companies' Act.

INTERNAL CONTROL

A sound system of internal control is maintained by the Board to
safeguard shareholder's investments and the Company's’ assets.

Annually, the Board conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
group's system of material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management systems. 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
approve the overall remuneration philosophy, strategy , policies
and practices including performance management systems, fixed
and variable pay schemes and benefits.  The Committee
comprises two Non-Executive Directors . The Report  of the
Remuneration Committee is given on page 46 of this Report. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS

Formal and transparent arrangements are established for
considering how financial reporting and internal control principles
are applied for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
company's Auditors. 

The  written terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:-

• Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company.

• Review the Company's internal financial controls and risk
management systems.

• Review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
process.

• Make recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment,  re-appointment and removal of external auditors
and  approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the External Auditor.

• Compliance with laws, regulations and professional standards.

The members of the Audit Committee are as given below:-

Mr. Simon Scarff (Chairman)

Mr. Maithri Wickremesinghe

CONSTRUCTIVE USE OF THE  AGM

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the published reports of
the Company are a means of communicating and encouraging
shareholder and investor participation. The Board believes that
maintaining good relationships with shareholders is of prime
importance. The Chairmen of all sub Committees of the Board are
present at the AGM and are willing to answer questions raised by
the shareholders. 

The notice and related papers are sent out to the shareholders 15
working days prior to the date of the AGM. The AGM is held
within three months of the financial year end. 
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Being a diversified Group exposed to many areas of business, we

realize the importance of having an effective Risk Management

Framework in place, in order to manage the various types of risks

such as strategic, operational, financial and hazard risks. The

effective management of risk through a systematic framework

results in an improved risk profile, which enhances shareholder

value.

Risk management at Hemas is intertwined with the strategic and

business planning framework. The key objective of risk

management at Hemas is to improve decision making and hence

Group profitability by having a framework, which ensures that only

justifiable risks are taken whilst unjustifiable risks are avoided.

This mechanism also ensures that the speed of decision making is

not adversely affected by unnecessary controls.

The risk management process of the Group covers the areas of

business strategy & operations, finance, legal & regulatory, credit

management, treasury management, human resource

management and information technology, and consists of the

following key components:

• Risk identification and assessment at the annual planning

stage.

• Review of policy, processes & compliance reporting by the

Internal Audit Division.

• Centralized treasury function to monitor and manage

exposure to interest rate and exchange rate risks.

• A provisioning policy to adequately provide for doubtful

realization of current assets.

• A central function to ensure that Group assets are properly

insured.

• A process to ensure the security and reliability of IT systems.

As the Group looks to diversify into new areas whilst maintaining

a steady growth in its current businesses, and given the

increasing dynamism in the business environment, we at Hemas

strive for continuous improvements in our risk management

process with a view to delivering better value to our stakeholders.

Risk Management
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors of Hemas Holdings PLC have pleasure in presenting
the audited Financial Statements of the Company together with
the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for
the year ended 31st March 2007.

These were approved by the Directors on 23rd May 2007.

Principal Activities

Hemas Holdings PLC

The principal activities of the Company continues to be carrying
out investment  activities and providing management and
administrative services to companies within the group.  

Subsidiaries and Associates

The Subsidiaries and Associates within the group are engaged in
diverse activities as described in note 41 to the financial
statements.

Review of Business Segments

A review of the affairs of the Group and  significant events that
took place during the year are described in detail in the CEO's
review on pages 9-11, the Sector Reports on pages 12 to 21 and
the financial review on pages 22 and 23. These reports form an
integral part of the Report of the Directors.

Important Events during the year

In terms of the Takeovers and Mergers Code 1995 Hemas
Holdings PLC, together with parties acting in concert, made a
mandatory offer to the shareholders of Serendib Hotels PLC in
August 2006 for the purchase of all the remaining voting shares of
Serendib Hotels PLC and its  Debentures  which are convertible to
voting ordinary shares. The Offer was closed on 24th August
2006. Hemas Holdings PLC acquired 617,325 Voting Ordinary
Shares and 11,589 Convertible Debentures thus increasing its
voting stake in Serendib Hotels PLC to 26.2% . 

Hemas Power (Pvt) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hemas
Holdings PLC  acquired the assets of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt)
Limited in September 2006 and subsequently obtained Board of
Investment status. 

System of Internal Controls

The Board of Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal controls covering the areas
of finance and operations, legal and regulatory risk identification,
assessment and management with a view to delivering better

value to the stakeholders. They are of the view that the internal
controls in place are adequate.   

Mission and Core Values of the Group

The Company's Mission and core values are stated on page 2 of
this Report. 

Results and Dividends - 31st March 2007

Rs.

Group Turnover 11,778,136,195

Net profit before tax 1,407,184,717

Income tax expenses 387,647,543

Net profit after tax 1,019,537,174

Minority interest 13,810,108

Net profit attributable to the Group 1,005,727,066

Accumulated profits brought forward 2,451,308,150

The Company paid a tax free  1st Interim Dividend of 12.5% on
15th November 2006.

A 12.5% 2nd Interim Dividend (gross effective) was paid to the
shareholders on 27th March 2007. 

A Final Dividend  has not been recommended.  

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of  Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company and the
Group and their movements are given in note 11 to the Financial
Statements on pages 67 to 69.

Reserves

Total Reserves of the Company and the Group stood at Rs 3.3Bn
and Rs 4.19Bn respectively as at 31st March 2007. Movements
are given in the Statement of  Changes in Equity on page 50.

Investments

Information relating to Investments are given in notes 15 to 18 to
the Financial Statements on pages 71-75.

Issued Capital 

The Issued Capital of the Company as at  31st March 2007 was
Rs.1,013,081,240/- divided into  101,308,124 Ordinary Shares  of Rs.
10/- each as against  Rs 998,012,490/- divided into 99,801,249
Ordinary Shares  of Rs. 10/- each as at 31st March 2006. The increase
was a result of  the exercise of Stock Options during the year.
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Share Information

Information on earnings, dividends, net assets and share trading
are disclosed on pages 3 and 96.

Major Shareholdings

The twenty largest shareholders of the Company are disclosed on
page 97 of this Report.

Employee Stock Option Schemes

An Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in the year 2003, whereby the
Company issued a total of 3,120,000  Ordinary shares to the
Senior Management and Employees based on performance. 
These options were required to be exercised between the period
1st April 2004 and 31st March 2008. 

The first and second grants have been finalized. The third grant is
in progress and options on a total of  500,875 shares  have been
exercised as at 31st March 2007.

On 29th  June 2006, subsequent to having received the
concurrence of the Colombo Stock Exchange and The Securities
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka respectively, shareholder
approval was obtained to issue a further 2,994 000 shares
representing 3% of the issued shares as at 31st March 2006 to
the eligible management staff of the group by the creation of an
Employee Share Option Scheme (ESOS). For the purpose of
operating the ESOS, Messrs Jacey Trust Services were appointed
as Trustees to the ESOS. 

The 1st tranche of 1,006,000 shares were issued to the Trustees
on 25th September 2006   at Rs. 105/- per share, on behalf of the
senior management. Exercise of the share options would be
between  the period September 2006  and March 2009.

The Trustees were granted interest free loans by the subsidiaries
of the Company to subscribe for a sum equivalent to the issue
price of the total of 1,006,000 shares.  

86,500 share options  have been exercised as at 31st March 2007
and transferred from the Trust to the respective employees.

Auditors' Report

The Report of the Auditors on the financial statements of the
Company and the Group is included on page 47 of the Annual
Report.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Company and the Group
are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as
follows:

• SLAS 3 (revised) - Presentation of Financial Statements 

• SLAS 5 (revised) - Inventories 

• SLAS 10 (revised) - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates

• SLAS 12 (revised) - Events after the Balance Sheet  Date

• SLAS 14 (revised) - Income Taxes 

• SLAS 18 (revised) - Property, Plant and Equipment 

• SLAS 19 (revised) - Leases

• SLAS 21 (revised) - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates 

• SLAS 26 (revised) - Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

• SLAS 27 (revised) - Accounting for Investments in Associates 

• SLAS 30 (revised) - Related Party Disclosures 

• SLAS 31 (revised) - Interests in Joint Ventures

• SLAS 34 (revised) - Earnings per Share

• SLAS 38 (revised) - Non Current Assets held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

• SLAS 40 - Investment Property

• SLAS 41 - Impairments of Assets

The principal effects of these changes are given in the Accounting
Policies.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

Remuneration of Directors

The total remuneration of the Board of Directors of Hemas
Holdings PLC during the year under review amounted to 
Rs. 31,210,581.

Emoluments received are indicated in detail  in the notes to the
Financial Statements. 

Directors

The Board of Directors of Hemas Holdings PLC comprise 8
members, three of whom serve as  Non-Executive Directors. The
qualifications and experience of the Directors are given on page
26 of the Report.  .  

The names of the Directors who held office during the year under
review are as given below:-

Mr. J.C.L. De Mel (Chairman)

Mr. H.N. Esufally (CEO)

Mr. A.N. Esufally

Mr. I.A.H. Esufally

Mr. D.Bhatnagar

Mr. M.A.H. Esufally

Mr. S.J. Scarff

Mr. M.E. Wickremesinghe

Ms. M.S.Fonseka  (resigned with effect from 14th February 2007)

In accordance with  the Articles of Association of the Company,
Messrs. M. Wickremesinghe and S.J. Scarff retire by rotation at
this year's Annual General Meeting and each, being eligible, is
recommended  for re-election.   

Mr. J.C.L. De Mel, who reached the age of 70 years on 6th May
2007, vacates office  in terms of Section 210 (2) (a) of the
Companies' Act No. 7 of 2007. The Directors intend proposing  a
resolution to re-appoint Mr. J.C.L.  De Mel in accordance with
Section 211 (1) of the Statutes. 

Direct and Indirect shareholdings of the Directors during the year
were as follows:-

As at As at
31.03.07 31.03.06      

Mr. J.C.L. De Mel 17,500 17,500  

Mr. H.N. Esufally 18,485,332 18,446,582

Mr. A.N. Esufally 19,298,075 19,283,700

Mr. I.A.H. Esufally 18,382,750 18,382,750

Mr. D. Bhatnagar 15,550 10,300

Mr. M.A.H. Esufally 18,287,133 18,287,133

Mr. S.J. Scarff NIL NIL

Mr. M.E. Wickremesinghe 2,250 2,250

Ms. M.S. Fonseka NIL 158,605 

(up to 14th February 2007)

Debentures

There were no debentures issued by the Company during the year
under review.

Directors' Interest in Contracts

Directors' Interest in Contracts or proposed contracts with the
Company are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
These interests have been declared at meetings of the Board. 
The Directors have no  direct or indirect interest in any other
contract or proposed contract.

Corporate Governance 

Your Board of Directors believe that professionalism, integrity and
high business ethics are significant company assets in business.
Whilst being committed to the highest standards of ethical
business conduct, the manner and extent to which the Company
has conformed to the principles of Corporate Governance  are set
out on page 38.
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Human Resources

Your company considers employee relations an important aspect
in its growth.  Hemas continues to seek modern systems and
techniques to encourage and support the development of
competencies of staff to ensure their optimum contribution
towards achieving corporate goals.  Measures taken in this regard
are set out on Page 35.

Statutory Payments

To the best of their knowledge and belief, the Directors are
satisfied that all statutory payments in relation to the Government
and to the Employees have been  settled to date or provided for in
the books of the Company. 

Events After Balance Sheet Date

No circumstances have arisen  and no material events have
occurred subsequent to the balance sheet  date that require
disclosure in or adjustment to the Financial Statements other than
that disclosed in Note 34.

Going Concern

The Directors have adopted  the going concern concept in
preparing these Financial Statements.

Group Auditors

Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, served as the
Group Auditors during the year under review. The Auditors have
confirmed that they have had no interest in or relationship with
the Company or its subsidiaries other than that of  Auditors. They
confirm that they are independent in accordance with the Code of
Ethics of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

The Audit Fees payable and fees  for other services rendered are
as noted hereunder:-

Fees payable to Auditors for the current financial year Rs. 594,000.

Fees payable for other services rendered Rs. 602,514.

Messrs, Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to
continue in office.  A resolution to re-appoint them and to
authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting.

HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC

Husein Esufally Lalith De Mel
Director Director

23rd May 2007

Report of the Directors



Hemas Holdings Annual Report 2006 / 0745

The Directors are required by the Companies' Act to prepare
financial statements  for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at the end of the financial  year and of  the profit and loss for 
that period.

In preparing  the financial statements, suitable accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made. Relevant
accounting standards have been followed. 

The Directors are responsible for maintaining adequate
accounting records, for safe guarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Accordingly, the Directors have taken all reasonable steps to
ensure that proper books of accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates have been maintained and that the
financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

By Order of the Board,

HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC

Hemas Corporate Services (Private) Limited
Secretaries

23rd May 2007

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee is composed of the Chairman, Lalith
De Mel and Simon Scarff, a Non-Executive Director. They both
bring considerable international experience to the role. The
Committee has met 6 times during the year.

The Committee works closely with the CEO and the Human
Resources function in the business. It seeks external guidance and
data to ascertain the profile of remuneration and the practices in
the comparative industrial sectors.

The Committee has, after looking inwards and outwards,
formulated a remuneration philosophy for the business. It has paid
particular attention to rewarding performance, generating a strong
commitment from employees and providing incentives for a longer
term relationship with the company.

This philosophy has now been encompassed  in salary, bonus and
share option schemes.

The Committee has placed a major emphasis on ensuring the long
term success of the business, and has sought to put in place
succession policies which will provide the right people for the
right jobs in the organization in the future.

The remuneration Committee reviews the performance of  senior
employees and determines the remuneration of Executive
Directors and Senior Management.

Lalith De Mel
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

23rd May 2007

Report of the Remuneration Committee
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The Audit Committee, which has been formally constituted as a
Sub Committee of the Board, comprises two Non-Executive
Directors, serving in an independent capacity. The names of the
members of  the Committee are given in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 39.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer attend
meetings of the Audit Committee by invitation, with the Company
Secretaries in attendance. The External Auditors attend these
meetings when their presence is considered necessary.  The role
of the Committee, which has specific terms of reference is
described in the Corporate Governance Report on page 39.

The Committee  is empowered to examine matters relating  to the
financial affairs of the group and its internal and external audits.
It endeavours to assist the Directors to discharge their duties and
responsibilities in respect of regulatory compliance and risk
management. 

The Audit Committee met four times during the year.   The
following activities were carried out by the Committee:-

• The Committee met with the Internal Auditors to formulate the
internal audit plan. The scope and coverage of internal audit
assignments were discussed with the Internal Auditors with a
view to making the internal audit process a more meaningful
exercise and providing value addition to management. 

• The adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls
were assessed by the Committee and recommendations  made
to ensure that controls continue to be effective.  The
Committee also focused on the business risks faced and the
steps to be taken in mitigating such risks.  

• The Committee reviewed the financial reporting systems
adopted by the group in the preparation of quarterly and
annual financial statements to ensure reliability of the process,
consistency  in accounting policies  and compliance with the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. The Committee, in its
evaluation of the financial reporting system also noted the
adequacy of content and quality of routine management
information reports forwarded to its members. The financial
statements were recommended to the Board for approval 
and issuance. 

• The Committee  held meetings with the External Auditors to
review the scope of the audit and the audit management
letters of the group companies. Action taken by the
management in response to issues raised in these reports
were discussed and remedial action  where necessary was
recommended by the Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors
that Messrs. Ernst & Young be re-appointed as Auditors  for the
financial year ending 31st March 2008, subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Simon Scarff
Chairman - Audit Committee

23rd May 2007          

Audit Committee Report
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEMAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(NOW KNOWN AS HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC)

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Hemas Holdings Limited as
at 31 March 2007, the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the
Company and its Subsidiaries as at that date, and the related
statements of Income, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, together with the Accounting Policies and Notes
as set out on pages 48 to 94.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparing and presenting these
financial statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements, based on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Sri Lanka Auditing
Standards, which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the said financial
statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the said financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the
directors, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements, and determining whether the said financial
statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards. We have obtained all the
information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. We
therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the
Company has maintained proper books of account for the year
ended 31 March 2007, and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said balance sheet
and related statements of income, cash flows and changes in
equity and the accounting policies and notes thereto, which are in
agreement with the said books and have been prepared and
presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
provide the information required by the Companies Act, No.17 of
1982 and give a true and fair view of the Company's state of
affairs as at 31 March 2007 and its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended.

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet and statements of
income, cash flows and changes in equity and the accounting
policies and notes thereto have been properly prepared and
presented in accordance with the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982
and the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2007 and the profit and
cash flows for the year then ended of the Company and its
subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so far as concerns the members of
the Company.

Directors' Interest in Contracts with the Company

According to the information made available to us, the Directors
of the Company were not directly or indirectly interested in
contracts with the Company during the year ended 31 March 2007
except as stated in Note 37 to these financial statements.

Colombo 
23rd May 2007

Auditor’s Report
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Year ended 31 March 2007
Group Company 

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Restated Restated

Revenue 3 11,778,136,195 9,779,338,126 126,704,982 67,832,056 

Cost of Sales (8,047,037,798) (6,389,825,797) - -

Gross Profit 3,731,098,397 3,389,512,329 126,704,982 67,832,056

Dividend Income 4 1,225,585 875,349 60,174,089 463,003,700 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties 163,385,091 22,709,800 50,579,482 76,802,975 

Other Income 5 251,580,809 234,286,226 51,626,499 49,321,731 

Distribution Expenses (929,825,347) (908,898,229) -   

Administrative Expenses (1,466,388,602) (1,154,023,178) (153,834,359) (94,851,429)

Other Operating Expenses (74,678,347) (57,309,839) -

Operating Profit 6 1,676,397,586 1,527,152,458 135,250,693 562,109,033 

Finance Cost 7 (272,926,465) (281,828,704) (42,599,730) (11,826,077)

Share of Associate Company Profit/(Loss) 3,713,596 2,050,550 - -   

Share of Profits of Subsidiaries - -   - 457,639,676

Profit Before Taxation 1,407,184,717 1,247,374,305 92,650,963 1,007,922,632 

Income Tax Expenses 8 (387,647,543) (281,838,083) (25,016,040) (14,121,810)
Profit for the Year 1,019,537,174 965,536,221 67,634,923 993,800,822

Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent 1,005,727,066 958,599,259 67,634,923 993,800,822 

Minority Interests 13,810,108 6,936,962 - -

1,019,537,174 965,536,221 67,634,923 993,800,822

Earnings Per Share - Basic 9 9.90 9.52 0.67 9.99 

Dividends Per Share - Interim Paid 10 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

- Final Proposed 10 - -   - -   

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 52 through 94 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Colombo

23 May 2007

Income Statement
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2007
Group Company 

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Restated Restated
ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment - At Cost 11 3,437,861,717 3,535,679,822 67,854,308 65,934,441 

- At Valuation 11 1,267,060,178 1,129,258,960 - -   
Investment Property 12 963,709,950 570,152,108 258,709,950 207,744,975 
Intangible Assets 13 155,562,952 107,267,828 - -   
Leasehold Property 14 71,042,005 75,345,819 - -   
Loans Due from Related Parties 21 - -   12,183,718 69,577,642 
Investments in Subsidiaries 15 - -   4,335,974,468 4,255,394,008 
Investments in Associates 16 42,933,320 102,609,226 - 43,045,547 
Investments in Joint Venture 17 -   -   8,359,120 -   
Other Investments 18 23,837,628 35,472,908 13,405,100 2,905,000 

5,962,007,750 5,555,786,671 4,696,486,664 4,644,601,613 
Current Assets
Inventories 19 991,030,234 745,361,436 - -   
Trade and Other Receivables 20 3,304,167,157 2,449,813,447 75,148,242 15,290,917 
Loans Due from Related Parties 21 - -   255,337,635 223,146,209 
Other Investments 18 125,542,355 311,237 48,642 48,642 
Tax Recoverable 47,509,772 29,903,723 10,919,804 7,971,326 
Amounts Due from Related Parties 22 - 631,489 58,360,790 82,339,400 
Short Term Cash Investments 32 505,833,764 299,365,761 3,586,272 117,249,855 
Cash and Bank Balances 32 459,764,484 943,587,755 75,726,517 101,261,849

5,433,847,766 4,468,974,848 479,127,902 547,308,198 

Total Assets 11,395,855,516 10,024,761,519 5,175,614,566 5,191,909,811 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the Equity Holders of the Parent
Issued Share Capital 23 1,013,081,240 998,012,490 1,013,081,240 998,012,490 
Preference Share Capital 23 75,000,000 91,666,665 - -   
Reserves 24 635,444,251 590,583,630 372,663,859 372,663,859 
Share Premium 315,931,333 187,516,403 315,931,333 187,516,403 
Accumulated Profits 3,234,682,081 2,451,308,150 2,612,568,365 2,794,908,532 

Shareholders’ Funds 5,274,138,905 4,319,087,338 4,314,244,797 4,353,101,284
Minority Interest 588,527,376 496,967,120 - -
Total Shareholders’ Funds and Minority Interest 5,862,666,281 4,816,054,458 4,314,244,797 4,353,101,284

Non-Current Liabilities 
Non Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 25 21,034,768 11,312,854 421,281,342 294,934,285 
Interest Bearing Loans & Borrowings 26 1,277,556,080 1,649,444,053 - -   
Deferred Income Tax 27 171,032,817 126,605,577 51,882,237 31,576,800 
Other Deferred Liabilities 28 120,831,293 103,702,432 11,381,592 11,221,428 
Provisions 29 7,000,000 31,046,917 - - 

1,597,454,958 1,922,111,833 484,545,171 337,732,513
Current Liabilities 
Trade and Other Payables 30 2,168,564,119 2,115,835,861 17,215,162 33,175,660 
Dividends Payable 2,684,034 126,937,803 167,567 124,452,365 
Income Tax Liabilities 157,674,585 120,486,221 9,231,063 6,490,159 
Amounts Due to Related Parties 31 - 3,377,623 4,337,442 14,162,132 
Non Interest Bearing Loans & Borrowings 25 1,207,000 3,534,220 - -   
Interest Bearing Loans & Borrowings 26 1,605,604,539 916,423,500 345,873,364 322,795,698

3,935,734,277 3,286,595,228 376,824,598 501,076,014 

Total Shareholders’ Funds, Minority Interest and Liabilities 11,395,855,516 10,024,761,519 5,175,614,566 5,191,909,811

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the board by,

Husein Esufally Lalith De Mel
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 52 through 94 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Colombo
23 May 2007
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Statement of Changes in Equity
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Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 March 2007
Group Company 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Restated Restated

Operating Activities
Profit Before Taxation 1,407,184,717 1,247,374,304 92,650,963 1,007,922,632 
Non-Cash
Goodwill (Net) (2,750,535) (38,903,377) - -   
Depreciation 407,899,381 364,389,117 22,296,816 16,041,356 
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (12,128,936) (54,384) (1,555,905) -   
Provision for Retiring Gratuity 34,382,389 26,177,496 2,299,215 4,276,032 
Finance Cost 272,926,465 281,278,058 42,599,730 11,826,077 
Investment Income (1,225,585) -   (60,174,089) (463,003,700)
Share of (Profit)/Loss of Associate/Subsidiary (3,713,596) (2,050,548) - (457,639,676)
Change in Fair Value of Investment Property (163,385,091) (22,709,800) (50,579,482) (76,802,975)
(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Associate 16,958,711 -   (1,494,700) -   
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investments (2,300,639) (31,666,250) (922,500) (14,631,093)

Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (854,353,710) (245,311,291) (59,381,325) (4,350,147)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (245,668,798) (12,425,450) -   -   
(Increase)/Decrease in Amounts Due from Related Companies 631,489 (486,021) 49,181,108 182,836,909 
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts Due to Related Companies (3,377,623) (185,718,707) (9,824,690) (144,274,681)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors and Accruals 10,222,514 174,280,747 (15,960,498) 15,599,161 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (24,046,918) 31,046,917 - -   
Finance Cost Paid (272,926,465) (281,278,058) (42,599,730) (11,826,077)
Income Tax Paid (364,184,212) (248,210,347) (4,918,177) (8,537,017)
Gratuity Paid (17,253,528) (6,558,485) (2,139,051) (91,000)
Development Expenses paid (5,898,074) (13,388,532) - - 

Net Cash from/(Used in) Operating Activities 176,991,956 1,035,785,389 (40,522,315) 57,345,801 

Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (365,415,804) (337,127,033) (26,406,452) (37,208,670)
Purchase of Investment Property - -   (385,493) -   
Acquisitions & Disposals of Subsidiaries/Associates (Note 33) (26,551,767) 13,066,117 (75,894,034) (619,378,042)
Investment in Brand (55,000,000) (49,000,000) - -   
Other Investments (125,231,118) (4,499) (13,000,100) -   
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 48,217,510 17,214,374 3,745,674 13,028,669 
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments 13,935,919 4,113,682 34,917,200 66,207,278 
Redemption of Preference Shares (16,666,665) (8,333,335) - 154,000,000 
Dividends Received from Associates 5,670,000 -   5,670,000 - 
Investment Income 1,225,585 -   54,504,089 463,003,700 

Net Cash from/( Used in) in Investing Activities (519,816,340) (360,070,694) (16,849,116) 39,652,935 

Financing Activities
Interest Bearing Loans & Borrowings( Net)    -'Rupee Loan 16,423,670 (128,765,133) 145,845,157 81,104,339 

-'US$ Loan (372,574,392) (262,893,934) - -
Proceeds From Issue of Share Options (ESOP) 143,483,680 50,343,559 143,483,680 50,343,559 
Proceeds From Minority ShareHolders 92,094,793 -   - -   
Dividends Paid     - To Hemas Share Holders (374,228,858) (242,766,060) (374,735,887) (243,021,433)

- Preference Shares (10,002,740) (11,753,425) - -   
Rental Deposits Received/(Paid) 9,721,914 (1,026,851) - -   
Finance Lease Paid (3,123,013) (1,158,514) - -  

Net Cash from/(Used in)  in Financing Activities (498,204,946) (598,020,358) (85,407,050) (111,573,535)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (841,029,330) 77,694,337 (142,778,481) (14,574,799)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year   (Note 32) 813,485,926 735,791,589 218,511,704 233,086,503

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year   (Note 32) (27,543,404) 813,485,926 75,733,223 218,511,704 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 52 through 94 form an integral part of the financial statements.



1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General 

Hemas Holdings PLC is a public limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office
and the principal place of business are situated at No. 36, Bristol
Street, Colombo 01. Hemas Holdings PLC does not have an
identifiable parent of its own.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

During the year, the principal activities of the Company were
carrying out investment activities, and providing management
and administration services to other Companies in the Group and
the principal activities of the Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint
Ventures are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

1.3 Date of Authorisation for Issue

The financial statements of Hemas Holdings PLC for the year
ended 31st March 2007 were authorised for issue, in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 23rd May 2007.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The balance sheet, statements of income, changes in equity and
cash flows, together with accounting policies and notes,
(“Financial Statements”) of the Company as at 31st March 2006
and for the year then ended, comply with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.

These financial statements presented in Sri Lanka Rupees have
been prepared on historical cost basis except for the valuation of
Land & Buildings and Investment Properties, which are stated at
market values.

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Hemas Holdings PLC
and all its Subsidiaries (the 'Group') have been prepared in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS)

2.1.2 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's and
Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and they do
not intend either to liquidate or to cease trading. 

2.1.3 Consolidation Policy - Principles of Consolidation

(a)  Subsidiaries 

The financial statement of the Group represents the
consolidation of the financial statements of Hemas Holdings PLC
and all its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2007. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same

reporting year as the parent company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances,transactions,income and expenses and
profit and losses resulting from intra-group transaction that are
recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Parent obtains
control until such time as control ceases.

The total profits & losses for the period of the Company and of
its subsidiaries included in consolidation are shown in the
consolidated income statement.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net
assets not held by the group and presented separately in the
income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance
sheet, separately from parent shareholders' equity. Acquisitions
of minority interests are accounted for using the parent entity
extension method, where the difference between the
consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill.

(b)  Associate Companies

The investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. An associate is an entity in which the
company has significant influence of 20% to 50% and which is
neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is
carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associates, net
of any dividends paid by such associates. The income statement
reflects the share of the results of operations of each associate.
Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the company recognises its share of any
changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of
changes in equity. Profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associates are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

(c)  Joint Ventures

The Group has an interest in a joint venture which is a jointly
controlled entity. A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that
is subject to joint control, and a jointly controlled entity is a joint
venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in
which each venture has an interest. The Group recognises its
interest in the joint venture using proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of each of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the joint venture with the similar items,
line by line, in its financial statements. The financial statements
of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting year as
the parent company except for Hellman Worldwide Logistics (Pvt)
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Ltd where the financial statement is prepared for 31 December
2006. All the material transactions are adjusted for the 3 months
period ended 31 March 2007. Accounting policies of the joint
venture are consistent with the parent company except for the
depreciation policy of Heladhanavi Ltd which is fully  described
in note 2.4.8 to the financial statements.

(d)  Business Combination & Goodwill

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. This involves recognising identifiable assets (including
previously unrecognised intangible assets) and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities and excluding future
restructuring) of the acquired business at fair value.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination after 1st June 2005
represents the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirer's
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination prior to 1st June
2005 in accordance with the transitional provisions of revised
SLAS 25 was amortised over a period of 5 years until 30th May
2005. Thereafter, commencing 1st June 2005 such amortisation
of goodwill has been discontinued and the accumulated
amortisation at that date has been eliminated against the
carrying value of goodwill and the balance goodwill is tested for
impairment in accordance with SLAS 41. 

Negative Goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on business combinations comprises
the excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquirer's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the business combination.

Negative goodwill arising on business combinations are credited
to the Income Statement.

(e)  Changes in Group Companies

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd (96%) was acquired as a
subsidiary. The controlling interest in Serendib Hotels Ltd. &
Mowbray Hotels Ltd. were increased up to 63% from 54% and
89% from 40% respectively. Further the group has made
investments in Vishwa BPO (Pte) Ltd. (100%), Hemas Hospital
(Pte) Ltd. (70%) and Hellman Worldwide Logistics (Pvt) Ltd.,
(49%). The stake in Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd. (Associate Company)
was disposed during the year. 

(g)  Country of Incorporation 

All subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies are
incorporated in Sri Lanka, except for the following.

Name of subsidiary Country of Incorporation Reporting currency

HIF Logistics (Pvt) Ltd Pakistan Rupee (PKR).

2.1.4 Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Company and, except for the changes in accounting policy
(policies) discussed more fully in 2.2, are consistent with those
used in the previous year.

Previous years figures and phrases have been re-arranged
wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's
presentation. Significant changes made to comparative
information are in respect of Revenue, Cost of Sales, Increase in
Fair Value of Investment Property, Dividend Income, Other
Operating Income, Deferred Tax, Revaluation Reserve, Leasehold
Property, Property, Plant & Equipment and Preference Shares.

2.1.5 Discontinuing Operations

A discontinuing operation is a clearly distinguishable component
of the Group's business that is abandoned or terminated
pursuant to a single plan, and which represents a separate major
line of industry or geographical area of operations.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except as follows:

The Company has adopted the following new/revised SLAS's
during the year 

• SLAS 3 (revised)
- Presentation of Financial Statements 

• SLAS 5 (revised)
- Inventories 

• SLAS 10 (revised)
- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

• SLAS 12 (revised)
- Events after the Balance Sheet  Date

• SLAS 14 (revised)
- Income Taxes 

• SLAS 18 (revised)
- Property, Plant and Equipment 

• SLAS 19 (revised)
- Leases

• SLAS 21 (revised)
- The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
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• SLAS 26 (revised)
- Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

• SLAS 27 (revised)
- Accounting for Investments in Associates 

• SLAS 30 (revised)
- Related Party Disclosures 

• SLAS 31 (revised)
- Interests in Joint Ventures

• SLAS 34 (revised)
- Earnings per Share

• SLAS 38 (revised)
- Non Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

• SLAS 40
- Investment Property

• SLAS 41
- Impairments of Assets

The principal effects of theses changes are as follows;

SLAS 14 (Revised) Income Taxes

The adoption of revised SLAS 14 requires deferred income tax to
be provided using the liability method on temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for reporting purposes.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of the Standard,
the Group has determined its transitional liability for deferred
income tax,as the difference between the deferred income tax
liability calculated based on the revised standard and the
deferred income tax liability as accounted and disclosed in the
financial statements on that date and the resulting reduction of
the deferred income tax liability has been immediately
recognised under SLAS 10 in the brought forward retained
earnings and the revaluations reserves. The deferred income tax
liability as at 31st March 2007 is analysed in note 27 to these
financial statements.

SLAS 19 (Revised) Leases

As of 1st April 2006 the Group adopted SLAS 19 on leases,
under which leasehold lands were hitherto classified under
property, plant & equipment was reclassified as leasehold
property and is amortised over the remaining lease term.

2.3 Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of Goodwill

The group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the “value in
use” of the cash generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating a value in use amount requires
management to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value of those
cash flows.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Fair Value of Unquoted Equity Investments

The unquoted equity instruments have been valued based on the
expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics. This valuation
requires the company to make estimates about expected future
cash flows and discount rates, and hence they are subject to
uncertainty.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.4.1 Foreign Currency Translations and Hedging

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are
taken to the Income Statement.

Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The resulting gains and losses are accounted for in
the Income Statement.

The  assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary is translated
into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on the
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translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.
In respect of transactions which meet the conditions for special
hedge accounting in relation to cash flow hedges, the portions of
an exchange gain or loss on the hedge instrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge is directly in equity through
the statement of changes in equity and ineffective portion is
recognized in the income statement.

2.4.2 Taxation

a)  Current Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the commissioner general of Inland Revenue. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income
and expenditure as reported in the financial statements and
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Act.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity
is recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

b)  Deferred Taxation

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences:

• except where the deferred income tax liability arises from
goodwill amortisation or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses can be utilised:

• except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognised directly in
equity is recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

c)  Tax on dividend income from subsidiaries and associate is
recognized as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement.

2.4.3      Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred, except to the extent where borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or production of an asset that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are
capitalized as part of that asset.

2.4.4 Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following the initial recognition of the intangible assets, the cost
model is applied requiring the assets to be carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs are not capitalised and
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expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income
statement in the expense category consistent with the
function/nature of the intangible asset. Amortisation was
commenced when the assets were available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating
unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets that are not yet available for sale are tested for
impairments at each financial year end, even if there is no
indication that the asset is impaired.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Research and Development Costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset
arising from development expenditure on an individual project is
recognised only when the company can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that it
will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the assets, how the assets will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the assets and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development.

During the period of development, the assets are tested for
impairment annually. Following the initial recognition of the
development expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring the

assets to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the assets
begins when development is complete and the asset is available
for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future sales.
During the period of which the asset is not yet in use it is tested
for impairment annually.

2.4.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, after making due allowances for obsolete and slow
moving items. Net realisable value is the price at which
inventories can be sold in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location
and conditions are accounted using the following cost formulae:-

Raw Materials
- At actual cost on first-in-first out /weighted average basis.

Foods and Beverages stocks
- At actual cost on  weighted average basis

Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress
- At the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of fixed production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Consumables & Spares
- At actual cost on first-in-first out basis

Goods-in-Transit & Other Stocks
- At actual cost.

2.4.6 Trade & Other Receivables

Trade receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated
to realise net of allowances for bad and doubtful receivables.

Other receivables and dues from Related Parties are recognised
at cost less allowance for bad and doubtful receivables.

2.4.7      Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand
deposits and short term highly liquid investments, readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in banks net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments with short maturities
i.e. three months or less from the date of acquisition are also
treated as cash equivalents.
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2.4.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

a)  Cost and Valuation

All items of Property, Plant & Equipment are initially recorded at
cost. Where items of Property, Plant and Equipment are
subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is
revalued. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to
ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from
their fair values at the balance sheet date. Subsequent to the
initial recognition as an asset at cost, revalued Property, Plant
and Equipment are carried at revalued amounts less any
subsequent depreciation thereon. All other Property, Plant and
Equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and less accumulated impairment in value.

When an asset is revalued, any increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to a revaluation surplus unless it reverses a
previous revaluation decrease relating to the same asset, which
was previously recognised as an expense. In these
circumstances the increase is recognised as income to the extent
of the previous write down. When an asset's carrying amount is
decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is
recognised as an expense unless it reverses a previous
increment relating to that asset, in which case it is charged
against any related revaluation surplus, to the extent that the
decrease does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation
surplus in respect of that same asset. Any balance remaining in
the revaluation surplus in respect of an asset, is transferred
directly to accumulated profits on retirement or disposal of the
asset.

b)  Restoration Costs

Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of Property, Plant
and Equipment in order to restore or maintain the future
economic benefits expected from originally assessed standard of
performance, is recognised as an expense when incurred.

c)  Depreciation

The provision for depreciation is calculated by using a straight
line method  on the cost or valuation of all Property, Plant and
Equipment other than freehold, in order to write off such
amounts over the estimated useful lives. The principal annual
rates used by the companies in the Group are as follows:

Freehold Buildings 1.5% - 5%
Leasehold Buildings Over the lease term
Plant & Machinery 6% -   25%
Power Plant Over 180 months
Furniture & Fittings 7% -   25%
Office & Factory Equipments 10% - 33.33%
Computer Hardware & Software 33.33 %
Motor Vehicles 20% -  25%

Crockery & Cutlery 50%- 100%         
Revertment 5%

Buildings on Leasehold Land are depreciated over the remaining
lease period (except for Serendib Hotel).

In Serendib Hotels PLC value of the buildings on the leasehold
land is amortized in 20 equal annual instalments commencing
from 1 April 1994 and ending in 31 March 2014. The Company
has further obtained an extension of the lease period for 30
years commencing 1 April 2002. Accordingly the balance written
down value of buildings as at 1st April 2000 is amortized over a
period of 33 years. However, if the lease is not renewed after
the date of termination on 31 March 2034, the Company is
entitled to compensation for the cost of buildings.

No provision is made in the year of purchase and full year's
depreciation is provided in the year of sale (except for
Heladhanavi Ltd., where provision is made in the year of
purchase and none in the year of sale).

d)  Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.4.9 Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of
a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings.
major plant and machinery, awaiting capitalization.

Hemas Hospital (Pte) Ltd and Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
commenced projects to develop a chain of hospitals and hydro
power plant respectively. The expenses that are of capital nature
will be accounted as capital work-in-progress until the
completion of the projects. 

2.4.10 Leased Property

Leasehold property comprising of land use rights obtained on a
long term basis, is stated at the recorded carrying values as at
the effective date of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 19 - Leases
in line with Ruling of the Urgent Issues Task Force of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. Such carrying
amounts are amortized over the remaining lease term or useful
life of the leased property whichever in shorter. 

2.4.11 Leases

a)  Finance Leases 

Property, Plant and Equipment on finance leases, which
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effectively transfer to the Group substantially all of the risk and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of minimum
lease payments. Capitalized leased assets are disclosed as
Finance Leases under Property, Plant and Equipment and
depreciated over the period the Group is expected to benefit
from the use of the leased assets.

The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor
together with interest payable over the period of lease is shown
as a liability. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. The interest payable over the period is transferred to
an interest in suspense account. The interest element of the
rental obligations pertaining to each financial year is charged to
income statement over the period of lease.

b) Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the
risks and benefits of ownership over the leased term, are
classified as operating leases.

Lease rentals paid under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

2.4.12 Investments

a)  Current Investments

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and market value
determined on an aggregate portfolio basis.

The cost of an investment is the cost of acquisition inclusive of
brokerage fees and stamp duty.

Unrealized gains and losses on current investments carried at
market value i.e. reduction to market value and   reversals of
such reductions required to reflect current investments at the
lower of cost and market value, are credited or charged to
income statement.

b)  Long Term Investments

Quoted and unquoted investments in shares held on a long term
basis are stated at cost.

The cost of the investment is the cost of acquisition inclusive of
brokerage fees, duties and bank fees.

The carrying amount of long term investments is reduced to
recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of
investments, determined on an individual investment basis.

In the Company's financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries were accounted for in the equity method until 31st
March 2006. With effect from 1st April 2006 in accordance with
the revised SLAS 26 the investment in subsidiaries are
accounted at the carrying value as that date and any investments
made after 1st April 2006 are carried at cost, net of any
provision for other than temporary diminution in value. 

Investments in associates are carried at cost, net of any
provision for other than temporary diminution in value.

c)  Investment Property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes
the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair values of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have
been disposed off or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised
in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by the end of owner
occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another
party or completion of construction or development. Transfers are
made from investment property when, and only when, there is a
change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner
occupation or commencement of development with a view to
sale.

For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied
property or inventories, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If the property occupied by the Group as an owner occupied
property becomes an investment property the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.
For a transfer from inventories to investment property, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement. When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self constructed investment property, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.
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c)  Other Investments

Treasury bills and other interest bearing securities held for resale
in the near future to benefit from short term market movements
are accounted for at cost plus relevant proportion of the
discounts or premiums.

2.4.13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. 

2.4.14 Retirement Benefit Obligations

a)  Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity 

Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The Company is liable to pay
gratuity in terms of the relevant statute. In order to meet this
liability, a provision is carried forward in the balance sheet,
equivalent to an amount calculated based on a half month's
salary of the last month of the financial year of all employees for
each completed year of service, commencing from the first year
of service. The resulting difference between brought forward
provision at the beginning of a year and the carried forward
provision at the end of a year is dealt within the income
statement.

In respect of those employees those who have not completed 5
years , the provision required at the end of 5 years is built up on
an increasing sum of digit basis and accordingly the retirement
benefit cost is charged to the income statement.

The gratuity liability is not externally funded nor actuarially
valued. This item is grouped under Other Deferred Liabilities in
the Balance Sheet.

However, as per the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 this
liability only arises upon completion of 5 years of continued
service.

b)  Defined Contribution Plans - Employees' Provident Fund & 

Employees' Trust Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees' Provident Fund
Contributions and Employees' Trust Fund Contributions in line
with the respective statutes and regulations. The Company
contributes 12 % and 3% of gross emoluments of employees to
Employees' Provident Fund and Employees' Trust Fund

respectively. Some employees of the group are eligible for
Mercantile Services Provident Society fund, for which the group
contributes 12% of gross emoluments of employees.

2.4.15 Impairment of Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset
or cash-generating unit, unless the asset or cash-generating unit
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or cash-generating units. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the
income statement in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously
revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case
the impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each
reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot ''exceed' the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment losses
recognised in relation to goodwill are not reversed for
subsequent increases in its recoverable amount.
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The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment
of specific assets:

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to Goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating
unit level, as appropriate.

Associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss of the Group's investment in its associates. The Group
determines at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired.
If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as being the difference between the fair value of the associate
and the acquisition cost and recognises the amount in the
income statement.

2.4.16 Income Statement

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable net of trade discounts, value
added taxes, and other sales taxes and after eliminating intra-
group sales. The following specific criteria are used for the
purpose of recognition of revenue.

a)  Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to
buyer; with the Company retaining neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold.

b)  Rendering of Services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered or
performed.

c)  Energy Supplied

Revenue from energy supplied is recognised,upon delivery of
energy to Ceylon Electricity Board and will be adjusted for
capacity charge for Minimum Guaranteed Energy Amount(MGEA)
at the end of the calendar year, if there has been a
curtailment.(Delivery of Electrical energy shall be completed
when electrical energy meeting the specifications as set out in
Power Purchase Agreement(PPA) is received at the metering
point.)

d)  Apartment and Food & Beverages Sales

Apartment  revenue is recognised on the rooms occupied on a
daily basis, and food & beverages sales are accounted for at the
time of sales. 

e)  Turnover Based Taxes

Turnover based taxes include Value Added Tax, Economic Service
charge and Turnover Tax, which is payable to Provincial Council
in respect of trading activities and Tourism Development Levy,
which is payable to the Ceylon Tourist Board by all companies
licensed by the Board. Companies in the Group pay such taxes in
accordance with the respective statutes.

f)  Interest

Interest Income is recognised on an accrual basis.

g)  Dividends

Dividend income is recognised on a cash basis (net of dividend
tax).

h)  Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis. Rental income
arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.

i)  Others

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal of
Property, Plant & Equipment and other non current assets
including investments have been accounted for in the income
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statement, having deducted from proceeds on disposal, the
carrying amount of the assets and related selling expenses. On
disposal of revalued Property, Plant and Equipment, amount
remaining in Revaluation Reserve relating to that asset is
transferred directly to Accumulated Profit.

Gains and losses arising from incidental activities to main
revenue generating activities and those arising from a group of
similar transactions which are not material, are aggregated,
reported and presented on a net basis.

Expenditure Recognition

a)  Expenses are recognised in the income statement on the
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the
earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in
the running of the business and in maintaining the Property,
Plant & Equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to
income in arriving at the profit for the year.

b)  For the purpose of presentation of income statement the
Company has adopted “the function of expenses” method on the
basis that it presents fairly the elements of the Company's and
Group's performance.

2.5 BUSINESS SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment is distinguishable component of an
enterprise that is engaged in providing an individual product or
service or a group of related products or services that is subject
to risk and returns that are different from those of other business
segments. The accounting policies adopted for segment
reporting are the same accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Inter Segment transfers are based on fair market prices.
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Year ended 31 March 2007
Group Company 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Restated

3 REVENUE

3.1 Summary

Sales 12,634,777,688 10,476,609,969 126,704,982 67,832,056 

Less: Sales Taxes:

Turnover Tax (46,868,145) (38,727,202) -   

Value Added Tax (809,773,348) (658,544,641) -

11,778,136,195 9,779,338,126 126,704,982 67,832,056 

3.2 Goods and Services Analysis

Sales of Goods 6,700,092,278 5,615,046,615 -   

Rendering of Services 5,078,043,917 4,164,291,511 126,704,982 67,832,056

11,778,136,195 9,779,338,126 126,704,982 67,832,056

Segment information is given in Note 40 to these financial statements.

4 DIVIDEND  INCOME

Income from Investments - Related Parties -   -   59,670,000 462,500,000 

- Others 1,225,585 875,349 504,089 503,700 

1,225,585 875,349 60,174,089 463,003,700 

5 OTHER  INCOME

Interest Income - Related Parties - -   28,072,914 8,035,327 

- Others 89,780,417 73,382,683 18,831,994 25,352,121 

Profit on Disposal of Investments 2,300,639 31,666,250 2,417,200 14,631,093 

Surplus on Acquisition (Negative Goodwill) 33,738,643 53,560,388 - -   

Rental Income 5,459,888 4,046,801 -  -   

Commission Income 6,717,839 6,853,703 - -   

Exchange Gain 44,418,868 20,990,802 - -   

Sundry Income 32,560,199 24,790,792 2,304,391 1,303,190 

Travel Counter Income 21,604,316 18,994,807 - -   

Profit from Disposal of Trade Marks 15,000,000 -   - - 

251,580,809 234,286,226 51,626,499 49,321,731
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Year ended 31 March 2007
Group Company 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

6 OPERATING PROFIT

Stated after Charging /(Crediting)

Directors Emoluments 34,912,104 28,834,880 22,630,374 16,006,390

Auditors Fees and Expenses 4,081,025 3,123,080 694,125 551,362

Depreciation - Cost 378,236,631 333,125,073 22,296,816 19,927,981

- Valuation 24,035,746 29,591,287 - -

- Leases 5,627,004 1,672,757 - -

Donations 26,135,797 7,144,381 5,279,900 -   

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (12,128,936) (54,384) (1,555,905) (885,512)

Bad Debts Written - off 9,534,586 10,275,212 - -   

Provision for Doubtful Debts 22,982,586 3,491,561 -  -   

Provision for Obsolete Stocks 7,011,247 6,075,744 - -   

Goodwill Written Off 3,916,956 14,657,012 -  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Associate Company 15,464,011 -   (1,494,700) -   

Staff Costs includes:

Defined Benefit Plan Cost - Gratuity 34,382,389 25,491,137 2,299,215 4,276,031

Defined Contribution Plan Cost - MSPS/EPF/ETF 62,369,985 52,305,394 5,562,184 3,197,501

Other Staff Costs 617,808,744 551,343,163 23,688,285 15,860,217

Legal Fees 1,274,163 1,340,605 - -

7 FINANCE COST

Interest Expense on Overdrafts 68,803,653 40,470,149 132,700 248,229 

Interest  Expense on Loans & Borrowings - Rupee 65,429,269 80,850,518 42,467,030 11,577,848 

- US$ 131,578,363 152,063,759 - -   

Debenture Interest 5,739,909 7,021,637 - -

Bank Guarantee Charges 631,514 871,995 -  -   

Finance Charges on Lease Liabilities 743,757 550,646 - -  

272,926,465 281,828,704 42,599,730 11,826,077 

8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current Income Tax

Current Tax Expense on Ordinary Activities for the Year   (8.1) 376,080,171 277,872,295 4,710,603 5,400,000 

Under/(Over) Provision of Current taxes in respect of prior years 1,886,356 (1,222,775) -  (1,440,320)

Share of Associate Company Income Tax - 1,367,548 - -   

Tax on Dividends 6,000,000 12,721,854 - -   

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal) (8.2) 3,681,016 (8,900,839) 20,305,437 10,162,130

387,647,543 281,838,083 25,016,040 14,121,810 
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Group Company 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

8.1 Reconciliation between Current Tax Expense/

(Income) and the product of Accounting Profit

Accounting Profit Before Tax 1,407,184,717 1,247,374,305 92,650,963 1,007,922,632 

Intra Group Adjustment/Share of Profits of subsidiary 66,335,535 515,535,205 - (457,639,676)  

1,473,520,252 1,762,909,510 92,650,963 550,282,956 

Aggregate Disallowed Items 447,166,939 399,462,430 67,526,565 39,663,582 

Aggregate Allowable Expenses (220,028,346) (453,830,548) (25,072,514) (16,791,303)

Aggregate Allowable Income (519,466,390) (736,769,109) (114,875,065) (539,767,787)

Incentives not recognised in the Income Statements (298,589) (8,000,000) (4,000,000)

Taxable Profit/(Loss) 1,180,893,866 963,772,283 20,229,949 29,387,448 

Tax Losses Brought Forward and Utilized (33,660,716) (16,703,394) (7,080,482) (11,685,607)

1,147,233,150 947,068,889 13,149,467 17,701,841

Current Income Tax Expense 376,080,171 277,872,295 4,710,603 5,400,000 

The Group tax expense is based on taxable profit of each Group Company.

8.2 Deferred Tax Expense/(Income)

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) arising due to 

Origination and Reversal of Timing Differences 3,681,016 (8,900,839) 20,305,437 10,162,130

3,681,016 (8,900,839) 20,305,437 10,162,130

8.3 Deferred Tax has been computed using current effective tax rates applicable to each Group Company. 

8.4 Applicable Tax Rates

As per the Inland Revenue Act, No. 38 of 2000, all resident companies are liable to effective Income Tax of 35% (2006 - 35%), with the exception

of the below stated Companies.

- Trading income of Serendib Hotels PLC, Hotel Sigiriya PLC, Stafford Hotels PLC, Miami Beach Hotels Ltd., Serendib Leisure Management Ltd.,

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. and Hemtours (Pte) Ltd., is taxed at 15%, while other income of these Companies are taxed at 35%. (2006 – 30%).

- Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd., has obtained BOI approval under Section 17 and it enjoys a 7 year tax holiday commencing from  year of

assessment 1998/1999 in which the enterprise  makes profits in relation to its transactions in that year or not later than 5 years from the

date of its first commercial operation whichever is earlier. Thereafter the applicable tax rate would be 2% of Revenue.

- The profits and income of the Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd., (other than from sale of capital assets) is exempted from income tax for a period of 5

years commencing from  the year of assessment in which the Company commences to carry on commercial operations, under section 21H of

the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No. 37 of 2003 (Provided that the Company, qualify the criteria specified in the said section).

Commercial operations would be deemed to commence in the year in which the issued share capital of the Company reaches Rs. 100 million

before 01st April 2008. The issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March 2007, amounted to Rs. 802 million.

- Pursuant to the agreement dated 28th August 2003, entered into with Board of Investment under section 17 of the Board of Investment Law, 
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Heladhanavi Ltd., is exempt from tax for a period of 10 years from the year in which the Company commences to make profits or any year of

assessment not later than two  years from the date of commencement of commercial operations of the enterprise, which ever is earlier.

After the expiration of the said, tax exemption period the income of the enterprise shall be charged at the rate of 15%.

However, other operating income of the Company is liable for income tax in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act.

- Pursuant to agreement entered into with Board of Investment under section 17 of the Board of Investment Law No. 4 of 1978 Vishwa BPO

(Pte) Ltd. & Hemas Hospitals (Pte) Ltd. are exempt from income tax for a period of three (3) years and five (5) years respectively, reckoned

from the year of assessment, in which the company commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two years from the

date of commencement of commercial operations of the company, whichever is earlier. 

After the expiration of the tax exempted period, profits are charged at ten percentage (10%) for the next two (2) years.

After the expiration of the above mentioned tax rate exemption of 10%, the companies' profits are liable for tax at 20% thereon.

- Companies where the taxable income is less than Rs. 5 million in any year of assessment are liable to income tax at a rate of 15%, in that year

(2006 - 20%) .

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

9.1 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during

the year and the previous year are adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding, without a corresponding

change in the resources such as a bonus issue.

9.2 The following reflects the income and share data used in the Basic Earnings Per Share computation.

Group Company 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Restated Restated

Amount Used as the Numerator:

Net Profit for the year 1,005,727,066 958,599,259 67,634,923 993,800,822 

Less: Preference Dividends (10,002,740) (11,753,425) - - 

Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for Basic

Earnings Per Share 995,724,326 946,845,834 67,634,923 993,800,822

2007 2006 2007 2006

Number Number Number Number

Number of Ordinary Shares Used as Denominator:

Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares in issue 

Applicable to Basic Earnings Per Share 100,530,310 99,458,976 100,530,310 99,458,976

9.3 There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year.
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2007 2006 

% Rs.. % Rs. 

10 DIVIDEND PER SHARE - Group/Company

10.1 Dividends Paid

Interim Paid - 1st Interim - Exempt Profit 126,214,173 363,435 

- Liable Profit - 124,067,570 

- Tax on Dividends - (12,406,757)

12.5 126,214,173 12.5 112,024,248 

- 2nd Interim - Exempt Profit 99,000,000 124,275,561 

- Liable Profit 27,512,130 -   

- Tax on Dividends (2,751,213) -

12.5 123,760,917 12.5 124,275,561 

Total Dividends - Gross 25.00 252,726,303 25.00 248,706,566 

- Tax on Dividends (2,751,213) (12,406,757)

- Net 249,975,090 236,299,809

10.2 Dividend Per Share

- 1st Interim 1.25 1.25 

- 2nd Interim 1.25 1.25 

- Final Proposed -   -   

10.3 The interim dividends have been paid on 15th November 2006 and 27th March 2007.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
11.1 Group

Gross Carrying Amount Balance Additions/ Disposals/ Reclassified Balance
as at Transfers/ Transfers as Investment as at 

01.04.2006 Acquisitions Property 31.03.2007
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At Cost /Cost incurred since Last Revaluation
Freehold Land 115,592,647 20,253,156 (100,000,000) (5,292,000) 30,553,803
Freehold Buildings 28,282,566 7,223,938 (3,782,742) (4,708,000) 27,015,762
Building on Leasehold Land 62,152,048 1,396,754 - - 63,548,802
Plant & Machinery 3,339,083,076 44,691,014 (19,353,157) - 3,364,420,933
Furniture & Fittings 256,029,507 33,505,189 (39,886,220) - 249,648,476
Office & Factory Equipment 150,844,942 24,060,560 (10,624,944) - 164,280,558
Computer Hardware & Software 260,892,418 28,630,492 (4,735,374) - 284,787,536
Motor Vehicles 214,355,412 86,401,983 (36,821,452) - 263,935,943
Crockery & Cutlery 10,583,350 - (10,265,310) - 318,040
Revertment 19,108,922 - - - 19,108,922

4,456,924,888 246,163,086 (225,469,199) (10,000,000) 4,467,618,775
At Valuation
Freehold Land 205,158,682 272,693,182 - (43,585,493) 434,266,371
Freehold Buildings 707,671,389 6,584,650 - (77,742,500) 636,513,539
Buildings on Leasehold Land 244,527,625 -   -   -   244,527,625

1,157,357,696 279,277,832 - (121,327,993) 1,315,307,535
Assets on Finance Leases
Motor Vehicles 9,711,218 12,359,037 (3,575,529) -   18,494,726

9,711,218 12,359,037 (3,575,529) -   18,494,726

Total Value of Assets 5,623,993,802 537,799,955 (229,044,728) (131,327,993) 5,801,421,036

Depreciation Balance Reclassified Balance
as at Charge for Disposals/ as Investment as at

01.04.2006 the year Transfers Property 31.03.2007
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At Cost
Freehold Buildings 2,095,352 145,926 (1,327,488) -   913,790
Building on Leasehold Land -   2,120,910 -   -   2,120,910
Plant & Machinery 491,369,363 233,433,262 (13,550,773) -   711,251,852
Furniture & Fittings 118,060,322 26,300,266 (21,189,058) -   123,171,530
Office & Factory Equipment 74,150,424 16,378,647 (2,747,951) -   87,781,120
Computer Hardware & Software 84,443,478 68,490,573 (4,496,781) -   148,437,270
Motor Vehicles 142,113,823 30,392,260 (31,323,079) -   141,183,004
Crockery & Cutlery 7,074,043 127,677 (5,891,720) -   1,310,000
Revertment 7,941,670 847,110 (7,939,773) -   849,007

927,248,475 378,236,631  (88,466,623) -   1,217,018,483
At Valuation
Freehold Buildings 18,855,183 15,368,694 -   (3,887,125) 30,336,752
Building on Leasehold Land 9,243,553 8,667,052 - -   17,910,605

28,098,736 24,035,746 - (3,887,125) 48,247,357
Assets on Finance Leases
Motor Vehicles 5,078,147 5,627,004 (2,594,863) -   8,110,288

5,078,147 5,627,004 (2,594,863) -   8,110,288

Total Depreciation 960,425,358 407,899,381 (91,061,486) (3,887,125) 1,273,376,128

Capital Work-In-Progress 1,370,338 176,848,098 (1,341,449) - 176,876,987
1,370,338 176,848,098 (1,341,449) - 176,876,987

2006 2007
Rs. Rs.

Net Book Values
At Cost 3,531,046,751 3,427,477,279
At Valuation 1,129,258,960 1,267,060,178
Assets on Finance Lease 4,633,071 10,384,438

Total Carrying Amount 4,664,938,782 4,704,921,895
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11.1.1 The Land and Buildings of Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd., Stafford Hotels PLC & Miami Beach Hotels Ltd., were last revalued during the

financial year 2004/2005 by Mr. D.S.A. Senaratne (A.I.V.) an independent valuer. The results of such revaluation was incorporated in these

financial  statements from its effective date which is 31 March 2005. Such assets were valued on an open market value for existing use basis.

The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to a Revaluation Reserve.

11.1.2 The Land and Buildings of Peace Haven Resort Ltd., was last revalued at the beginning of the financial year 2006/2007 by Mr. D.S.A. Senaratne

(A.I.V.) an independent valuer. The results of such revaluation was incorporated in these financial  statements from its effective date which is 01

April 2006. Such assets were valued on an open market value for existing use basis. The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to

a Revaluation Reserve. The next revaluation will be carried out in accordance with the group policy.

11.1.3 During the financial year, the Group acquired Property, Plant & Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 614,648,053/- (2006 - Rs. 399,200,916/-)

of which Rs. 5,627,004/- (2006 - Rs. 352,350/-) was acquired by means of finance leases. Cash payments amounting to Rs. 365,415,804/-  (2006 -

Rs. 337,127,033/-) was paid during the year for purchases of Property, Plant & Equipment.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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11.2 Company
Gross Carrying Amount Balance Additions Disposals Balance

as at as at 
01.04.2006 31.03.2007

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At Cost

Roadways 4,858,512 2,117,176 -   6,975,688

Furniture & Fittings 6,069,582 2,495,860 -   8,565,442

Office Equipment 8,892,713 1,245,553 (140,722) 9,997,544

Computer Hardware and Software 56,184,217 11,515,050 -   67,699,267

Motor Vehicles 10,033,335 9,032,813 (5,943,133) 13,123,015

Total Value of  Assets 86,038,359 26,406,452 (6,083,855) 106,360,956

Depreciation Balance Additions Disposals Balance
as at as at 

01.04.2006 31.03.2007
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At Cost

Furniture & Fittings 1,406,242 754,857 -   2,161,099

Office Equipment 4,821,749 1,001,597 -   5,823,346

Computer Hardware and Software 10,219,118 18,353,937 (95,953) 28,477,102

Motor Vehicles 3,656,809 2,186,425 (3,798,133) 2,045,101

Total Depreciation 20,103,918 22,296,816 (3,894,086) 38,506,648

2006 2007

Rs. Rs.

Net Book Values

At Cost 65,934,441 67,854,308

Total Carrying Amount 65,934,441 67,854,308

11.2.1 During the financial year, the Company acquired Property, Plant & Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 26,406,452/-

(2006 - Rs. 42,628,056/-) of which Rs. 26,406,452/- (2006 - Rs. 37,208,670/-) was acquired by means of cash.           
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Restated

Investment Properties at Fair Value at the Beginning of the Year 570,152,108 -   207,744,975 -   

Reclassified from Property, Plant & Equipment 127,440,868 514,576,549 - 130,942,000 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties on

adoption of SLAS 40- Investment Property 102,731,883 22,031,451 - -   

800,324,859 536,608,000 207,744,975 130,942,000

Additions during the Year - 10,834,308 385,493 - 

Change in Fair value of Investment Property during the Year 163,385,091 22,709,800 50,579,482 76,802,975

Investment Properties at Fair Value at the end of the Year 963,709,950 570,152,108 258,709,950 207,744,975

The groups' policy is to revalue Investment Properties every three years, accordingly the Investment Properties of Hemas Holdings PLC & Hemas Development
(Pte) Ltd., were revalued during the financial year 2004/2005 by Mr. D.S.A. Senaratne (A.I.V.) an independent valuer. The results of such revaluation was
incorporated in these financial statements from its effective date which is 31 March 2005. Such assets were valued on an open market value for existing use
basis. The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to a Revaluation Reserve. After adoption of SLAS - 40 the surplus was transferred from
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The Directors have assessed the fair value of the Investment Properties of Hemas Developments as at 31 March 2006 & 2007 based on earning growth method.
The fair value of the Investment Properties of Hemas Holdings PLC as at 31 March 2006 & 2007 was assessed  by a revaluation carried out by Mr. D.S.A.
Senaratne (A.I.V.) an  independent valuer on an open market value for existing use basis, the resulting surplus in fair value is included in the Income Statement.

Group
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2007 2006

Rs. Rs. 
13.1 Non Current

Goodwill 20,664,878 14,327,963 
Brands 129,000,000 74,000,000 
Project Development Expenses 5,898,074 18,939,865

155,562,952 107,267,828 

13.1.1 Goodwill
At the beginning of the year 14,327,963 9,784,437 
Acquired during the year 10,253,871 19,200,538 
Impairment/Amortisation during the Year (3,916,956) (14,657,012)
At the end of the Year 20,664,878 14,327,963

13.1.2 Brands
At the beginning of the year 74,000,000 25,000,000 
Acquired during the year 55,000,000 49,000,000 
Impairment/Amortisation during the Year - -
At the end of the Year 129,000,000 74,000,000

13.1.3 Project Development Expenses
At the beginning of the year 18,939,865 5,551,333   
Acquired during the year 5,898,074 13,388,532 
Impairment/Written Off during the Year (18,939,865) - 
At the end of the Year 5,898,074 18,939,865

Hemas Group and its Subsidiaries annually carry out an impairment test on all its intangible assets. Impairment tests are carried out as follows:
Goodwill - The business acquisition to which the goodwill is attributable is valued based on the earnings growth method. 

Assumptions applied in such computations are reviewed each year.
Brands                                      - Brands are valued based on the earnings growth method, and assumptions applied are reviewed each year.

Project Development Expenses - These include all expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development stage. The technical 
feasibility of completing the project and the business case for future economic benefits are reassessed each year.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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14 LEASEHOLD PROPERTY Group
2007 2006

Rs. Rs. 
Cost/Valuation
At the beginning of the year 76,838,370 50,838,370 
Acquisition of Leasehold Rights - 26,000,000
At the end of the Year 76,838,370 76,838,370

Amortisation
At the beginning of the year 1,492,551 -   
Amortised during the Year 4,303,814 1,492,551
At the end of the Year 5,796,365 1,492,551

Carrying Value at the end of the Year 71,042,005 75,345,819

Serendib Hotels PLC obtained leasehold rights to land situated in Bentota for 30 years from Ceylon Tourist Board. Based on the Ruling 11 of Urgent
Issues Task Force (UITF) of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, it was stated at revalued amounts. As a  result of  a revision to said
ruling, the Company now carries such leasehold rights to land, at the values recorded in the balance sheet as at the effective date of SLAS 19- Leases. 

The leasehold rights to land is disclosed under non current assets under Leasehold Property with effect from the current financial year with comparative   
amounts being changed to conform to current presentation.The revised UITF ruling does not permit further revaluation of Leasehold Property. An amount  

of Rs. 50.8 Mn is remaining in the equity under Revaluation Surplus & Minority Interest relating to previous revaluation of  Leasehold rights to land. Last 
such revaluation was carried out by Mr. D.S.A. Senaratne (A.I.V.) an  independent valuer in the year 2004/05. 

This also includes an amount of Rs. 26 Mn (Carrying Value - Rs. 23.5 Mn) paid in respect of acquisition of leasehold rights from Nimesha Enterprises by
Hemas Manufacturing.

15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Group Holding Company Holding Company

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % % Rs. Rs.

15.1 Non-Quoted Investments
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 16,890,699 16,890,699
Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 50.0 50.0 632,316,443 632,316,443  
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 2.2 2.2 374,693,081 374,693,081
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 890,662,863 890,662,863  
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 650,031,275 650,031,275
Hemas Foods (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 24,845,575 24,845,575  
Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 380,947,388 380,947,388 
Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 23,956,545 23,956,545 
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 123,876,586 123,876,586
Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 61,314,987 61,314,987 
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 64,687,574 64,687,574  
Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 97,581,714 97,581,714
Discover the World Marketing (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 4,665,732 4,665,732  
Hemas Aviation (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 1,909,963 1,909,963 
Exchange & Finance Investments Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 9,411,793 9,411,793 
Hemtours (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 209,911,882 209,911,882 
Leisure Asia Investments Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 257,559,015 257,559,015  
Peace Haven Resorts Ltd 95.5 95.5 95.5 95.5 336,454,612 336,454,612 
Hemas Shipping (Pte) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 300,000 300,000  
ACX international (Pvt) Ltd 100.0 100.0 100.0 - 7,000,000
Mowbray Hotels Ltd 89.0 - 89.0 - 46,201,442

4,215,219,169 4,162,017,728
15.2 Quoted Investments

Serendib Hotels PLC 63.0 54.0 27.9 13.6 120,755,299 93,376,280 
Total 4,335,974,468 4,255,394,008

15.3 The companies with less than 50% voting power is considered as subsidiaries, as control exist over their financial and operating policies in line
with SLAS 26.
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16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

16.1 Group
Carrying Share of Profit Disposal Carrying

Holdings % Value Reserves net of Transfer of Value
2007 2006 2006 Dividends Investment 2007

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Quoted
Mowbray Hotels Ltd* - 39.6% 11,092,091 16,339,735 (27,431,826) -
Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd - 30.0% 48,583,815 (1,625,104) (46,958,711) -
E-Channelling Ltd** 24.6% 24.6% 42,933,320 - - 42,933,320

102,609,226 14,714,631 (74,390,537) 42,933,320

** The share of Profit/(Loss) of the Company has not been included in the carrying value of the Investment, as it is insignificant. However the 

investment was tested for impairment. 

Holding % No. of Shares 2007 2006
16.2 Company 2007 2006 2007 2006 Rs. Rs.

Mowbray Hotels Ltd* - 39.6% -  2,820,691 - 13,045,547 
Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd - 30.0% - 3,000,000 - 30,000,000

-   43,045,547 

* During the current year Mowbray Hotels Ltd. has become a Subsidiary.

17 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE 
Group Holdings Company Holdings Company

% % % % 2007 2006
2007 2006 2007 2006 Rs. Rs.

Hellmann Worldwide Logistics (Pvt) Ltd 49% - 49%  - 8,359,120 - 
Heladhanavi Ltd. 50% 50% - - - -

8,359,120 - 

18 OTHER INVESTMENTS
Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Summary 
Non Current
Investments in Equity Securities 18.1/18.2 23,817,628 15,042,908 13,405,100 2,905,000 
Investments in Debentures 18.1.1 - -   - -   
Investments in Fixed Deposits 20,000 20,430,000 - - 

23,837,628 35,472,908 13,405,100 2,905,000 

Current

Investment in Equity Securities 18.1.2/18.2.1 356,376 311,237 48,642 48,642   

Investments in Fixed Deposits 125,185,979 -   - -

125,542,355 311,237 48,642 48,642 

Total Carrying Value of Other Investments 149,379,983 35,784,145 13,453,742 2,953,642 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18.1 Investments in Equity Securities-Non Current

Group Carrying Market Carrying Market
No of Shares Value Value Value Value

2007 2006 2007 2007 2006 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Quoted 

Overseas Realty (Ceylon) Ltd 1,000 1,000 10,000 13,000 10,000 20,000 

Eden Hotels Lanka Ltd 127 127 861 1,461 861 2,000 

Galadari Hotels Ltd 2,000 2,000 18,750 21,500 18,750 29,325 

Blue Diamond Jewellers Ltd 1,300 1,300 3,900 3,640 3,900 1,800 

Royal Palm Beach Hotels 85 85 676 3,358 676 3,379 

Kotmale Holdings Ltd 40,000 40,000 400,000 470,000 400,000 540,000 

Total Investment in Quoted Equity Securities 434,187 512,959 434,187 3,971,504 

Carrying Carrying 
Value Value
2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

b) Non-Quoted

Felix Hotels Ltd 25,930 1,751,210 

Rainforest Ecology (Pvt) Ltd 10,000,000 10,000,000 

SLFFA Cargo Services Ltd 357,511 357,511 

National Equity Fund -   2,500,000 

CT Capital (Pvt) Ltd 13,000,000 -   

23,383,441 14,608,721 

Total Equity Investments (Group - Non Current) 23,817,628 15,042,908

18.1.1 Investment in Debentures
Group No of Debentures Carrying Carrying 

Value Value
2007 2006 2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

Ocean View Ltd (6% interest) - 149,722 - 1,497,220 

Less: Provision for fall in value of investments - -   - (1,497,220)

- 149,722 - - 
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18.1.2 Investments in Equity Securities - Current
Group Carrying Market Carrying Market

No of Shares Value Value Value Value
2007 2006 2007 2007 2006 2006

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Quoted 

John Keells Holdings Ltd 726 726 48,642 112,530 48,642 114,708 

Aitken Spence & Co. Ltd 133 133 34,000 50,540 34,000 45,486 

Lanka Milk Foods Ltd 100 100 2,540 3,950 3,200 2,600 

Harischandra Mills Ltd 100 100 11,500 42,500 11,500 40,000 

Millers Ltd 500 500 24,000 342,000 24,000 350,000 

Cargills Ltd 200 200 17,200 90,000 17,200 112,000 

Keells Food Products Ltd 100 100 1,875 4,975 1,875 3,400 

Elephant Lite Corporation Ltd 100 100 700 725 700 725 

Soy Foods (F&W) Ltd 100 100 3,550 6,500 3,550 8,475 

Muller & Phipps Ltd 100 100 1,500 100 1,500 130 

Chemanex Ltd 174 174 12,975 33,104 12,975 19,027 

John Keells Ltd 284 284 13,000 24,211 13,000 29,252 

Glaxo Ceylon Ltd 150 150 4,500 - 4,500 -   

Shaw Wallace Ltd 100 100 6,800 17,000 6,800 19,500 

Ceylon Cold Stores Ltd 300 300 4,025 45,600 4,025 46,200 

Ceylon Tobacco Ltd -   196 - -   3,900 11,858 

Nestle Lanka Ltd 100 400 22,313 26,000 17,625 71,200 

Lankem Ceylon Ltd 1,600 1,600 20,800 58,800 20,800 86,400 

E.B. Creasy Ltd 150 150 23,000 21,150 23,000 39,000 

J.L. Morrisons Ltd 130 130 30,550 54,600 30,550 66,500 

Hayleys Ltd 396 396 26,240 56,232 26,240 40,392 

Chemical Industries Ceylon Ltd 148 148 11,525 13,320 11,525 26,492 

Lambretta Ceylon Ltd 100 -   1,069 - -   -   

C.W. Mackie & Company Ltd 100 -   2,236 2,375 -   -   

Ceylon Tea Services Ltd 200 -   55,784 36,000

380,324 1,042,212 321,107 1,133,345 

Less: Provision for fall in Value (30,823) - (16,745) - 

Total Equity Investments (Group - Current) 349,501 1,042,212 304,362 1,133,345 

b) Non Quoted

Coca Cola Beverages Sri Lanka Ltd. 100 100 5,275 - 5,275 -

Carsons Marketing Ltd 100 100 1,600 - 1,600 -

-   - 6,875 - 6,875 -

Total Investments 356,376 1,042,212 311,237 1,133,345

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18.2 Investment in Equity Securities - Non Current 

Company Carrying Market Carrying Market
No of Shares Value Value Value Value

2007 2006 2007 2007 2006 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a.   Quoted

Overseas Realty (Ceylon) Ltd 500 500 5,000 6,500 5,000 10,000 

Kotmale Holdings Ltd 40,000 40,000 400,000 470,000 400,000 540,000 
405,000 476,500 405,000 3,925,000 

b.   Non - Quoted

National Equity Fund - 250,000 - - 2,500,000 -   

CT Capital (Pvt) Ltd 1,300,000 -   13,000,000 - -   -   

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 1 -   100 - -   - 

13,000,100 -   2,500,000 - 

Total Carrying Value of Equity Investment

(Company - Non Current) 13,405,100 - 2,905,000 3,925,000

18.2.1 Investment in Equity Securities - Current 
Carrying Market Carrying Market

No of Shares Value Value Value Value
2007 2006 2007 2007 2006 2006

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

John Keells Holdings Ltd 726 726   48,642 112,530 48,642  72,419

Total Carrying Value of Equity Investment

(Company - Current) 48,642 112,530 48,642 72,419

19 INVENTORIES
Group

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.

Raw Materials 181,064,610 83,810,863 

Work in Progress 24,167,234 16,143,896 

Finished Goods & Other Stock* 741,697,877 619,802,921 

Goods In Transit 47,434,829 35,356,333

994,364,550 755,114,013 

Less: Provision for Unrealized Profit (3,334,316) (9,752,577)

991,030,234 745,361,436

* Finished Goods & other Stock are net of provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks.
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Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
20.1 Summary

Trade Debtors
Related Parties (20.2) - - 33,479,280 -
Others 1,869,033,157 1,646,208,415 3,206,860 -   

Ceylon Electricity Board 732,373,833 547,478,218 - -   
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (46,326,963) (20,648,632) - -

2,555,080,027 2,174,076,229 36,686,140 -   
Other Debtors 412,937,340 149,040,939 25,695,368 2,982,303 
Advances and Prepayments 292,407,240 98,174,134 1,399,978 7,879,473 
Loans to Company Officers (20.3) 43,742,550 29,560,373 11,366,756 4,429,141 

3,304,167,157 2,449,813,447 75,148,242 15,290,917

20.2 Trade Dues from Related Parties         

Relationship        
Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd Subsidiary - - 821,097 -   
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd Subsidiary - - 588,429 -   
Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd  Subsidiary - - 10,190,877 -   
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd Subsidiary - - 7,079,369 -   
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd Subsidiary - -      100,575   -
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd Subsidiary - - 399,600 -   
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd.  Subsidiary - - 6,972,154 -   
Vishwa BPO (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 5,270,283 -   
Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 2,011,748 -   
Exchange & Finance Investment Ltd. Subsidiary - - 7,188 -   
Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 37,960 -

- - 33,479,280 - 

20.3 Loans to Company Officers:
Summary
Balance as at the Beginning of the Year 29,560,373 24,822,282 4,429,141 2,521,258 
Loans Granted During the Year 36,048,739 20,114,963 10,516,800 5,796,435 
Less: Repayments (21,866,562) (15,376,872) (3,579,185) (3,888,552)

Balance as at the end of the Year 43,742,550 29,560,373 11,366,756 4,429,141 

21 LOANS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES - Company
Current Non-Current Total Total

2007 2007 2007 2006
Relationship Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 89,500,000 -   89,500,000 33,540,997 
Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 1,000,000 12,183,718 13,183,718 68,000,000 
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 2,499,999 -   2,499,999 23,746,209 
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 48,737,636 -   48,737,636 64,090,783 
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 5,000,000 -   5,000,000 33,945,862
Hemas Development (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   - 31,400,000 
Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   -   23,000,000 
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   - 15,000,000 
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 42,000,000 - 42,000,000 -
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 60,000,000 -   60,000,000 -  
ACX International (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary 600,000 -   600,000 -
Hellmann Worldwide Logistics (Pvt) Ltd. Joint Venture 6,000,000 6,000,000 -

255,337,635 12,183,718 267,521,353 292,723,851

Notes to the Financial Statements
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22 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Relationship Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 877,978 4,614,638 
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 2,550,000 1,463,875 
Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 9,527,601 4,473,809 
Spectrum Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - (6,008) -   
Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 33,601,084 58,527,940 
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 2,575,770 1,290,282 
Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 252,091 111,981 
Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 102,373 -   
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 2,520,827 4,891,221 
Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd. Associate - 631,489 -  544,924 
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 1,386,381 6,409,949 
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - (34,061) -   
Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 86,128 -   
Exchange and Finance Investment Ltd. Subsidiary - - - 10,781 
Vishwa BPO (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 4,267,196 -   
Hellmann Worldwide Logistics (Pte) Ltd. Joint Venture - - 643,766 -   
ACX International (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 9,664 - 

-   631,489 58,360,790 82,339,400

23 SHARE CAPITAL

23.1 Authorised Par Value Company
Rs. 2007 2006

Number Number

Number of Shares Ordinary Shares 10/- 200,000,000 200,000,000

Rs. Rs.

Nominal Value Ordinary Shares 10/- 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 

23.2 Issued and Fully Paid
At the Issued/(Redeemed) At the

Par Value beginning for Cash End
Rs. of the Year During the Year of the Year

01.04.2006 31.03.2007

Number Number Number
Number of Shares Ordinary Shares 10/- 99,801,249 1,506,875 101,308,124

12% Cumulative Redeemable

Preference shares 9,166,667 (1,666,667) 7,500,000

108,967,916 (159,792) 108,808,124

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Nominal Value Ordinary Shares 10/- 998,012,490 15,068,750  1,013,081,240

12% Cumulative Redeemable

Preference shares 91,666,665 (16,666,665) 75,000,000

1,089,679,155 (1,597,915) 1,088,081,240

23.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions of Classes of Capital

The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at a

meeting of the Company.
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Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Restated Restated

24 RESERVES

Summary

(a) Revaluation & Other Capital Reserve
Opening Balance as Previously Reported 567,822,473 580,389,548 372,663,859 622,906,729 
Revaluation Reserve during the Year 118,090,002 (1,193,490) - -
Transfer to/(from) during the Year 62,498,689 28,150,663 - -   
Net Gain/(Loss) Recognised Directly in Equity (38,622,545) (39,524,248) - -
Effect of Adopting SLAS 40 (Investment Property) (19,151,023) -   - (41,193,306)
Adjustment in respect of changes in Group Holding (2,451,588) - - -
Capital Reserve of Subsidiaries -   -   - (209,049,564)

688,186,008 567,822,473 372,663,859 372,663,859 

(b) Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 8,333,335 -   - -   

Transfer from Accumulated Profits 16,666,665 8,333,335 - -

Balance at the End of the Year 25,000,000 8,333,335 -  - 

(c) Exchange Reserve

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 14,427,822 81,001,865 - -

Transfer from/(to) Accumulated Profits (92,169,579) (66,574,043) - -

Balance at the End of the Year (77,741,757) 14,427,822 - -  

Total Reserves 635,444,251 590,583,630 372,663,859 372,663,859 

The above revaluation surplus consists of net surplus resulting from the revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment as described in Note 11 to these

financial statements.

25 NON INTEREST BEARING LOANS & BORROWINGS

2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
Amount Amount Amount Amount

Repayable Repayable Repayable Repayable 
Within After Within After
1 Year 1 Year Total 1 Year 1 Year Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

25.1 Group

Rent Deposits/Advances Payable - 21,034,768 21,034,768 2,327,220 10,054,111 12,381,331 

Other Payable 1,207,000 - 1,207,000 1,207,000 1,258,743 2,465,743

1,207,000 21,034,768 22,241,768 3,534,220 11,312,854 14,847,074

25.2 Company

Loans from Related Parties (25.2.1) * -   421,281,342 421,281,342 -   294,934,285 294,934,285

- 421,281,342 421,281,342 -   294,934,285 294,934,285

Notes to the Financial Statements
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25.2.1 Loans from Related Parties

As at Loans Repayment As at

01.04.2006 Obtained During the year 31.03.2007

Relationship During the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 32,172,645 63,874,000 (43,374,000) 52,672,645

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 59,770,682 247,704,209 (178,907,346) 128,567,545

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 128,189,995 - - 128,189,995

Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 40,690,914 135,000,000 (85,000,000) 90,690,914

Hemas Development (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 10,269,202 - - 10,269,202

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 14,385,137 17,638,500 (22,090,000) 9,933,637

Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 9,455,710 23,415,498 (32,871,208) -

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary -   957,404 - 957,404

294,934,285 488,589,611   (362,242,554)  421,281,342

* Terms of repayment are mutually agreed with relevant related parties.

No securities are kept in respect of these loans.

26 INTEREST BEARING LOANS & BORROWINGS

26.1 Group
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006

Amount Amount Amount Amount
Repayable Repayable Repayable Repayable 

Within After Within After
1 Year 1 Year Total 1 Year 1 Year Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Finance Leases 2,672,832 4,338,723 7,011,555 1,282,073 3,225,492 4,507,565 

Bank Loans - Rupee Loan (26.1.1) 223,758,103 153,064,845 376,822,948 122,399,232 228,909,137 351,308,369 

- US$ Syndicate Loan(26.1.2) 376,941,043 1,095,152,512 1,472,093,555 354,183,696 1,383,218,515 1,737,402,211

Debentures (26.1.3) 9,090,909 25,000,000 34,090,909 9,090,909 34,090,909 43,181,818 

Bank Overdrafts 993,141,652 - 993,141,652 429,467,590 -   429,467,590 

1,605,604,539 1,277,556,080 2,883,160,619 916,423,500 1,649,444,053 2,565,867,553

26.1.1 Rupee Loan

As at Loans  Repayments As at

01.04.2006 Obtained 31.03.2007

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Bank Loans 351,308,369 114,244,500 (88,729,921) 376,822,948

351,308,369 114,244,500 (88,729,921) 376,822,948
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26.1.2 US$ Syndicate Loan As at As at 
01.04.2006 Loans Obtained Repayments Exchange Loss 31.03.2007 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Syndicate Loan 1,737,402,211 - (364,861,697) 99,553,041 1,472,093,555

Rate of Interest

(a) In 2004 Heladhanavi Ltd. (Joint Venture) entered into an Interest Rate SWAP Agreement with Hatton National Bank, fixed interest rate 5.15%

plus 3% per annum for US$ 36.5 Mn. (Group Share - US$ 18.25 Mn.)

(b) Floating Interest Rate: Three months London Inter Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 3% per annum applicable for balance US$ 2.5 Mn (Group

Share - US$ 1.25 Mn.)

- Interest payable quarterly during the grace period and thereafter monthly.   

Security

Immovable assets have been secured against US$ 4 Mn (Group Share - US$ 2 Mn) loan and; movable assets, assignment of book debts, all

shares of the venture and project documents have been secured against balance US$ 35 Mn (Group Share - US$ 17.5 Mn) loan.

Facility

The US$ 39 Mn (Group Share - US$ 19.5 Mn) syndicated loan facility was obtained from Hatton National Bank, Commercial Bank of Ceylon Ltd.,

Peoples' Bank., Bank of Ceylon., Seylan Bank Ltd., Sampath Bank Ltd., DFCC Bank to finance the project and disbursements were made when it

was requested by the Venture to make progress payments on the project.

Terms of Repayment

The Capital repayment of the loan commenced from June 2005 after a grace period of 18 months from the date  of the first disbursement.

Terms & Conditions of US$ Syndicate Loan

Undertaking not to declare dividends

According to the Syndicated Facility Agreement (SFA), Venture has agreed and undertaken not to declare any dividend without the prior consent

of the lead bank during the grace period and thereafter.

Heladhanavi has agreed and undertaken to maintain

1. Long term debt equity ratio below 2 : 1 from the second year of operation onwards

2. Debt Service Coverage Ratio be at least greater than one from the second year of operation

3. Liquidity at 2 : 1 from the second year of operation onwards.

No payments can be made to an amount aggregating to more than US $ 100,000 (Group Share - US$ 50,000) or its equivalent in any currency per

quarter other than project related payments and payments of dividends with the prior consent of the lead bank.

26.1.3 Debentures As at As at 
01.04.2006 New Issues Redemption 31.03.2007 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

15.75% Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Fixed Rate Debenture 43,181,818 - (9,090,909) 34,090,909

Security    

Heladhanavi Ltd. (Joint Venture) was not required by National Savings Bank to furnish any security for the Debentures issued by them.            

Terms of Redemption            

Grace period for the repayment of the loan is 18 months from the date of disbursement and, equal capital repayments over 66 months thereafter.    

The Reason for the issue            

These debentures were issued to finance the cost of the project and carry an interest of 15.75% per annum, payable half-yearly in arrears.            

Notes to the Financial Statements
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26.2 Company
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006

Amount Amount Amount Amount
Repayable Repayable Repayable Repayable 

Within After Within After
1 Year 1 Year Total 1 Year 1 Year Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loans from Related Parties (26.2.1) 342,293,798 342,293,798 322,795,698 -   322,795,698 

Bank Overdrafts 3,579,566 3,579,566 -   -   -  

345,873,364 -   345,873,364 322,795,698 -   322,795,698 

26.2.1 Loans from Related Parties
As at Loans Repayment As at

01.04.2006 Obtained During the year 31.03.2007
During the year

Relationship Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 40,000,000 596,766,000 (636,766,000) -

Spectrum Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 49,900,000 91,800,000 (141,700,000)  -

Peace Haven Resorts (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 218,895,698 - - 218,895,298 

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary 14,000,000 42,000,000 - 56,000,000 

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - 55,500,000   - 55,500,000

Hemas Aviation (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - 6,100,000   - 6,100,000

Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - 74,398,500   (68,600,400) 5,798,500

322,795,698 866,564,500   (847,066,400) 342,293,798

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Restated Restated

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Balance as at Beginning of the Year 126,605,577 91,326,474 31,576,800 10,805,541 

Provision/(Release) made during the  Year

- Directly to P&L 3,681,016 (8,900,839) 4,392,569 (1,034,241)

- Directly to Equity 40,746,224 44,179,942 - -

- In Respect of Investment Property - P&L - - 15,912,868 11,196,371

- Equity - - - 10,609,129

Balance as at the end of the Year 171,032,817 126,605,577 51,882,237 31,576,800

28 OTHER DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Retirement Benefit Obligation - Gratuity

Balance as at Beginning of the Year 103,702,432 84,083,421 11,221,428 7,036,396 

Charge for the Year 34,382,389 26,177,496 2,299,215 4,276,032 

Payments during the Year (17,253,528) (6,558,485) (2,139,051) (91,000)

Balance as at the end of the Year 120,831,293 103,702,432 11,381,592 11,221,428
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Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

29 PROVISIONS

Provision for Delayed Interest under EPC/O&M Contracts - 31,046,917 - -

Provision for Delayed Interest on purchase of fuel 7,000,000 - - -

7,000,000 31,046,917 - -

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Payables - Others 1,881,816,088 1,520,463,902 5,537,146 23,713,784 

- Related Party (30.1) - - 1,291,360 -

Sundry Creditors including Accrued Expenses 286,748,031 595,371,959 10,386,656 9,461,876

2,168,564,119 2,115,835,861 17,215,162 33,175,660

30.1 Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   244,264 - 
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   463,701 - 
Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - - 42,500 -
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   444,304 -
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   18,000 - 
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   69,010 - 
Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   9,581 -  

- - 1,291,360 - 

31 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

Relationship
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   1,872,442 1,291,193 
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   - 902,055 
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   - 12,000
Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   - 160,922 
Peace Haven Resorts Limited Subsidiary - -   - 7,422,029 
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd. Subsidiary - -   2,465,000 1,865,000 
Lakdhanavi Ltd. Joint Venturer - 862,500 - -
Hela Clothing (Private) Ltd. Associate - 2,515,123 - 2,508,933 

- 3,377,623 4,337,442 14,162,132 

32 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

32.1 Favourable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balances

Cash & Bank Balances 459,764,484 943,587,755 75,726,517 101,261,849 

Treasury Bills and Repo Investments 505,833,764 299,365,761 3,586,272 117,249,855

965,598,248 1,242,953,516 79,312,789 218,511,704

32.2 Unfavourable Cash & Cash Equivalent Balances

Bank Overdraft (Note 26.1/26.2) (993,141,652) (429,467,590) (3,579,566) -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose

of Cash Flow Statement (27,543,404) 813,485,926 75,733,223 218,511,704

Notes to the Financial Statements
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33 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATE DURING THE YEAR - Group
The acquisitions and disposals had the following effects on the groups Assets & Liabilities

2007
Rs. 

(a) Mowbray Hotels Ltd and Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 131,014,790
Investments 1,139,434
Other Receivables 214,133
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,300,706

134,669,063

Less:Liabilities
Creditors and Accruals (44,832,964)

Net Assets Acquired 89,836,099 

Minority Share (10,139,893)
Carrying value of the investment (27,431,826

52,264,380 

Goodwill Acquired (negative Goodwill) (19,012,486)
Cash & cash equivalents (2,300,706)

Purchase Consideration 30,951,188 

(b) Serendib Hotel PLC 27,095,279

Total Cash Consideration 58,046,467
Proceeds from disposal of Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd (31,494,700)
Net Cash Out flows 26,551,767

34. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date, which would have any material effect on the Group except for the following.

Serendib Hotels PLC
The Company entered into a strategic partnership during the year with Minor International PCL , Thailand. As part of this process the Company issued
19.9%of issued share capital to “Lodging Investment (Labuan) Ltd”, a wholly owned subsidiary of Minor International PCLby way of a private placement.
The proceeds of the above share issue amounting to Rs.137,359,803/- has been received by the Company on 26th April 2007.

Hemtours (Pte) Limited
The contract with Trans Asia Hotels Ltd to operate their Travel Counter will not be renewed.

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

35.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Limited

The Company is relocating its factory to Dankotuwa under sec.17 of the BOI Act of 1978. The total cost of the project which is approved by the
Director but not contracted for amounts to Rs.690Mn. Rs.37Mn has been paid as advances in relation to the relocation.

(a) Hemas Hospitals (Pte) Limited

As at balance sheet date, the Company had commitments of Rs.1,297Mn ($13Mn) principally relating to construction of Hospital.

(b) Serendib Hotels PLC

Total capital expenditure for the refurbishment of the hotel, which is approved by the Board of Directors but not contracted for, amounts to
approximately Rs.22.6 Mn.

(c) Giddawa Hydro Power (Pte) Limited

The total estimated capital expenditure cost of the Project will amount to Rs.288Mn of which Rs.51.794Mn has been incurred during the current financial year.
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35.2 Contingencies

(a) Hemas Holdings PLC

The contingent liability as at 31st March 2007 on guarantees given by Hemas Holdings Ltd ., to banks on behalf of subsidiaries  and  Associates

relating to facilities obtained, are as follows:

2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Limited 88,750,000 88,750,000 

Hemas Travels (Pte) Limited 14,000,000 29,000,000 

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Limited - 4,000,000 

Hemas International Freight (Pte) Limited 9,000,000 21,000,000 

Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Limited 5,000,000 5,000,000 

Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Limited - 15,000,000 

Heladhanavi Limited 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pte) Limited 132,000,000 - 

Exchange & Finance Investment Limited 2,500,000 - 

351,250,000 262,750,000 

(b) Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Limited

A civil case has been filed against the Company by Colgate Palmolive Company, seeking a declaration that the Company's Registered Trade Mark

No. 74941 is null and void and of no force or effect in law from the date of registration of the said mark. 

Based on the representations made by the Company Lawyers, the Supreme Court has delivered judgment in favour of the Company.

(c) Hemas Travels (Pte) Limited

(a) The Company has obtained Guarantees from Standard Chartered Bank and HNB favouring Airline Operators amounting  to 

Rs. 164,300,000/-

(b) The Company has obtained Guarantees from Standard Chartered Bank favouring "Gullivers Travels" and Saltours International , Mumbai

amounting to GBP 10,000 and EURO 10,000 respectively.

(c) The Company has obtained Guarantees from Standard Chartered Bank favouring Central Bank of Sri Lanka amounting  to Rs. 2,500,000/-.

(d) Hemas Air Services (Pte) Limited

(a) The Company has obtained Guarantees from HNB and Standard Chartered Bank favouring Air Port & Aviation Services (Pte) Ltd and

Malaysian Airline amounting to Rs. 4,146,780/- and USD 200,000 respectively.

(b) The Company has obtained Guarantees from HNB & Standard Chartered Bank favouring "Drukair", amounting to USD 20,000 and "Island

Aviation" amounting to Rs. 1,000,000/-.

(c) The Company has obtained Guarantees from Standard Chartered Bank favouring "Discover Momentum", amounting to USD 50,000.

(e) Hemas International Freight (Pte) ltd

The Company have obtained Guarantee from Nations Trust Bank favouring Sri Lankan Air Lines amounting to Rs.5Mn.

The company have obtained a Guarantee from Standard Chartered Bank favouring Green Lanka Shipping Limited amounting to Rs. 4Mn.

The company have obtained a Guarantee from Nations Trust Bank favouring James Finley & Company (Colombo)  Limited amounting to Rs. 2.5Mn.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(f) Exchange & Finance Investments Limited

Mr.K.T.D.Samarasinghe has filed a case against the company claiming damages for Rs.5Mn and the trial is still being continued. However no

provision has been made in the accounts in this regard.

The Company has obtained guarantees from Nation Trust Bank favouring Kenya Airways and Alitalia Airlines amounting to Rs.4Mn and Rs.5Mn

respectively.

(g) Hemas Aviation (Pte) Limited

(a) The company has obtained Guarantee from Standard Chartered Bank favouring Druck Air Corporation Ltd amounting to US$200,000.

(a) The company has obtained Guarantee from Hatton National Bank favouring Island Aviation Services Ltd amounting to Rs1Mn.

(h) Hemtours (Pte) Limited

The company have filed cases against Mr. Irosh Fernando and Varma & UVI Holidays for the purpose of recovering the receivables due from them.

Lease Commitments

Hemas Hospitals (Pte) Limited

Operating Lease Commitments - Company as Lessee

The Company has entered into an operating lease agreement to lease a land from Nihila Garments (Pvt) Ltd . This lease has a life of 30 years with no

renewal option included in the contract. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into this lease.

Future minimum rentals payable under operating lease as at 31st March as follows 2007

Rs.

Within 01 year  15,000,000

After 01 year but not more than 05 years 75,000,000

More than 05 years 579,744,000

669,744,000

35.3 Commitments and Contingencies of the Jointly Controlled Entity

Heladhanavi Limited - The Group has 50% share of following;

Operations and Maintenance Agreement with Lakdhanavi Ltd

According to this agreement,the fixed fee payable after the final completion date is US$ 625,000 per annum paid in equal monthly installments

for the period of 10 years.

Heladhanavi Limited is liable to pay Lakdhanavi Limited an additional sum of US $ 2,000,000 for each remaining year of the term or pro rata for

part of term upon the early termination of this agreement.

A variable fee, depends on the Net Energy output generated

Fuel Transport Agreement with LTL Projects (Pvt) Ltd

Heladhanavi Limited has entered into a contract during the period with LTL Projects (Pvt) Ltd for the transportation of fuel.According to the

arrangement the venture need to pay a fixed charge of US $ 10,500 per month from the date of commencement of power generation in the plant.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Fuel Supply Agreement with Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

If the venture is unable to accept fuel under supply schedule (subject to change) and /or comply with its obligations under this agreement and

costs,expenses,damages & losses incurred as a direct and exclusive result of such failure or inability should be paid by the venture within 30

days. However venture's liability under this agreement is limited to a maximum of US $ 500,000 per annum.

According to the clause 3.5 (C) of fuel supply agreement , venture has establish a letter of Credit at Hatton National Bank in favour of Ceylon

Petroleum Corporation to the value of Rs. 280 Mn.

Power Purchase Agreement with Ceylon Electricity Board

If the venture fails to supply Minimum Guaranteed Energy Amount ( MGEA ), which is 698,417,280 kwh per year, the venture would be liable for

liquidated damages.

Shortfall Amount of liquidated damages for each

kwh of shortfall

Exceeding 10% of MGEA upto 25% of MGEA 15% of capacity charges

Exceeding 25% of MGEA 25% of capacity charges

Notes to the Financial Statements
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36   ASSETS PLEDGED 

Name of The Company Nature of Assets Nature of Liability Carrying Amount Included 
of the  Assets Under

Pledged
2007 2006

Rs. Rs. 

Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd. Inventories. Concurrent Mortgage to 288,100,000 193,100,000 Inventories and   
Trade Receivables the extend of bank facility Trade Debtors 

obtained from HNB & HSBC

Heladhanavi Ltd  Immovable Assets.   US$ 4,000,000  10,884,270 10,884,270 Property ,Plant 
(The Group has 50% share of the (Syndicated Loan Facility) & Equipment   
Assets Pledged)         

Mortgage of all movable 
assets and assignment of 6,336,435,807 6,357,757,301 
book debts of the company. 
Share certificates of the 1,200,000,070 1,200,000,070 Share Capital.
Company. 

Assignment of project    
documents.  

Immovable Assets. 

Mortgage of all movable Rs. 30,769,230   10,884,270 10,884,270 Property ,Plant
assets and assignment of (Rupee Loan Facility) & Equipment.
book debts of the company.

Share certificates of the Rs. 269,230,769 6,336,435,807 6,357,757,301 Property ,Plant
company. (Rupee Loan Facility) & Equipment.

Assignment of project Rs. 400,000,000 1,200,000,070 1,200,000,070 Share Capital
documents. (Working Capital Loan)

Serendib Hotels PLC   Land and Buildings Primary Mortgage upto 211,631,257 219,405,933 Property, Plant 
the value of Rs 48Mn to & Equipment
Seylan Bank  

Secondary Mortgage upto
the value of Rs 20Mn to
Seylan Bank  

Stafford Hotels PLC      Freehold Land Primary Mortgage upto  40,434,600 40,180,000 Property, Plant   
the value of Rs. 55Mn to & Equipment
DFCC bank.

Plant, Machinery & Equipment Primary mortgage over Property, Plant
Receivables existing movable items up 30,145,431 33,534,006 & Equipment

to the value of Rs. 5Mn to DFCC 40,048,888 38,629,191 Debtors 

Plant and Equipment Secondary Mortgage up to value 40,434,600 40,180,000 Property, Plant
of Rs.3.785Mn to DFCC & Equipment

Miami Beach Hotels Ltd.   Freehold Land & Buildings Primary Mortgage upto the 157,530,624 156,704,621 Property, Plant
value of Rs 65Mn to Seylan Bank & Equipment

Freehold Land Secondary Mortgage up to 50,944,300 50,944,300 Property, Plant
the value of Rs.15Mn to DFCC & Equipment

Plant, Machinery & Equipment Primary mortgage over  Property, Plant
Debtors existing movable items up   18,906,895 21,896,329 & Equipment

to the value of Rs. 5Mn to DFCC 25,291,272 22,266,353 Debtors

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd Motor vehicles Primary Mortgage up to the value 9,078,913 12,106,428.00 Property, Plant
of Rs.18Mn to NDB bank & Equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements
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37 DIRECTORS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND/OR PROPOSED CONTRACTS WITH THE COMPANY

37.1 Messers: Husein Esufally, Murtaza Esufally, Abbas Esufally, Imtiaz Esufally, Lalith de Mel, Divayaroop Bhatnagar, Simon Scarff, Maithri Wickremesinghe
and Ms. Serena Fonseka (resigned w.e.f 14/02/2007)  were Directors of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2007.

All interests in contracts with the Company in respect to ordinary course of business have been declared at Board Meetings by the Directors concerned.
The Directors have no direct or indirect personal interest in any other contracts and/or proposed  contracts with the Company.

37.2  Details of Transactions carried out with director related entities within Hemas Group which have been eliminated in consolidation during the year.

Related Party Relationship Directors Nature of Transaction Value 2007 Value 2006 
Rs. Rs 

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Limited
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally

Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Purchases 1,868,603,098 1,548,931,741 
Mr.M.Esufally
Mr.D.Bhatnagar

Hemas Foods(Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Purchases 82,614,000 117,699,583 
Mr.M.Esufally

Vishwa BPO (Pte)  Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Ms.Kasturi Wilson Shared Services 3,609,984 - 

Hemas International Freight (Pvt) Ltd
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally

Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Air Cargo Services 7,495,493 11,728,349 
Mr.M.Esufally
Mr.E.Fernando

Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Purchase of air tickets 8,899,809 12,296,322 
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Vehicle Rent 2,777,022 3,679,205 
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Holdings Ltd Parent Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Management Fees 15,244,668 10,187,801 
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd
Vishwa BPO (Pte)  Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Shared Services 3,789,666 -

Ms.Kasturi Wilson

Hemas Healthcare Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Transfer of Funds 33,531,623 -
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd
Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally

Mr.A.Esufally Foreign Travelling 6,684,041 3,735,177 
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Freight forwarding expenses 6,009,173 4,565,598 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally
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Related Party Relationship Directors Nature of Transaction Value 2007 Value 2006 
Rs. Rs 

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd

Value stated below are sales throughput, however revenue is recognised as net commission on sales.

Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Air Line ticket Sales 14,054,819 3,088,580
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Air Line ticket Sales 5,313,666 2,280,152
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Rental expenses 3,784,800 3,643,200
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Air Line ticket Sales 21,155,974 16,717,710
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Holdings PLC Parent Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Air Line ticket Sales 9,617,263 2,717,791
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Exchange and Finance Investment (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Airline ticket Purchases 8,254,724 10,603,400
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Aviation (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Airline ticket Purchases 2,026,560 3,414,800
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Airline ticket Purchases 258,855,492 266,379,273
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Air Line ticket Sales 19,442,411 30,117,519
Mr.M.Esufally

Vishwa BPO (Pte)  Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Shared Services 2,617,171 -
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Holdings PLC
Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally

Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally Interest income 5,496,177 7,252,594
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally Consultancy Fees 8,660,000 3,780,662
Mr.A.Esufally IT Charges 9,870,186 -
Mr.I.Esufally Interest Income 4,429,526 6,133,732
Mr.M.Esufally Management Fees - 1,800,000
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Related Party Relationship Directors Nature of Transaction Value 2007 Value 2006 
Rs. Rs

Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally Rental Income 4,608,052 3,686,443
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy 8,660,000 8,680,661
Mr.I.Esufally IT Charges 12,354,067 -
Mr.M.Esufally Management Fees - 1,800,000

Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd Mr.M.Esufally Rental Income 10,686,163 15,686,163

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy Fees 2,650,000 13,843,786
Mr.I.Esufally Interest - 3,430,858
Mr.M.Esufally

Spectrum Marketing (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Inter Company Interest Expenses 2,564,754 4,128,290
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally Consultancy Fees 7,715,000 3,270,165
Mr.A.Esufally IT Charges 15,307,877 -
Mr.I.Esufally Inter Company Interest Income 10,164,912 6,280,848
Mr.M.Esufally Inter Company Interest Expenses 2,841,196 -

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally Consultancy Fees 1,960,000 1,000,000
Mr.A.Esufally IT Charges 5,908,135 -
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy Fees 2,145,000 2,720,731
Mr.I.Esufally IT Charges 6,260,787 -
Mr.M.Esufally Inter Company Interest Expenses 1,742,179 -

Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy Fees 3,390,000 4,671,514
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy Fees 2,870,000 -
Mr.I.Esufally Interest Income 1,886,134 -
Mr.M.Esufally Interest Expence - 4,346,971 

Vishwa BPO (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Consultancy Fees & IT Charges 2,279,412 -
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Interest Expenses 8,224,694 -
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Peace Haven Resorts Limited Mr.H.Esufally
Mr.A.Esufally Interest Expenses 19,591,528 10,070,062
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2007

Related Party Relationship Directors Nature of Transaction Value 2007 Value 2006 
Rs. Rs

Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd
Hemas Holdings PLC Parent Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 4,191,466 3,953,517 

Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 6,965,774 7,551,055 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Travels (Pte ) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 4,685,518 2,546,062 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 2,576,017 1,656,219 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Int.Freight (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 3,008,962 2,030,023 
Mr.A.Esufally

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.I.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 2,039,167 3,345,405 

Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 7,699,119 9,071,049 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Centralised Corporate Services 2,216,345 444,521 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemtours (Pte) Ltd

Vishwa BPO (Pte)  Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Shared Services 3,308,040 -
Ms.Kasturi Wilson

Hemas Development (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Rental Fees 7,329,456 7,541,904
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd
Value stated below are sales throughput, however revenue is recognised as net commission on sales.

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Air ticket sales 28,015,625 94,287,578 
Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally

Forbes Air Services
Hemas Development (Pte) Ltd Group Company Mr.H.Esufally Rental fees 11,145,096 10,793,040

Mr.A.Esufally
Mr.I.Esufally
Mr.M.Esufally
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Year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

38.1 Compensation to Hemas Holdings PLC Board of Directors 

Directors’ Fees 3,160,000 3,050,000

Emoluments 26,010,271 20,940,845

Non cash benefits 2,040,310 1,903,350

38.2 Transactions, arrangements and agreements involving Hemas Holdings PLC Board of Directors

Purchase of air tickets 7,363,220 8,474,201

39 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information based on the primary segments (Business Segment)

Segment Turnover

FMCG 3,845,485,636 3,192,469,554 

Healthcare 2,854,606,642 2,460,770,804 

Leisure 863,642,303 792,835,940 

Transportation 507,250,402 417,921,731 

Power 3,643,389,658 2,893,892,243 

Others 261,129,248 176,280,325

11,975,503,889 9,934,170,597 

Less: Inter Sector Sales (197,367,694) (154,832,471)

11,778,136,195 9,779,338,126

Segment Profit

FMCG 399,382,161 408,870,325 

Healthcare 140,899,711 136,746,325 

Leisure 42,663,784 28,588,709 

Transportation 102,233,666 131,573,307 

Power 303,019,766 262,732,878 

Others 31,338,086 (2,975,323)

1,019,537,174 965,536,221
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Segment Assets & Liabilities Total Assets Total Liabilities

2007 2006 2007 2006

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

FMCG 2,962,886,510 2,219,193,823 1,045,706,382 629,654,040 

Healthcare 1,687,906,332 1,231,411,226 987,467,093 826,507,233 

Leisure 2,279,763,695 2,100,887,176 623,090,844 614,340,468 

Transportation 1,631,063,535 1,543,254,789 1,188,666,396 1,169,774,273 

Power 3,769,768,192 3,496,297,969 2,578,451,664 2,521,106,738 

Others 6,847,188,128 6,543,498,945 961,977,694 966,551,164

19,178,576,392 17,134,543,928 7,385,360,073 6,727,933,916 

Inter Sector Adjustment (7,782,720,876) (7,109,782,409) (1,852,170,838) (1,519,226,855)

11,395,855,516 10,024,761,519 5,533,189,235 5,208,707,061

40 PROPORTIONATE INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group's proportionate 50% share of Heladhanavi Ltd and 49% share of Hellman Worldwide Logistics (Pvt) Ltd. Income and Expenses, Assets and

Liabilities have been included in the Group Income statement and Balance Sheet respectively.

The aggregate amounts so included are as follows;

Group

2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

a) Current Assets 1,296,096,540 859,455,402 

b) Non Current Assets 2,445,268,880 2,636,842,560 

c) Current Liabilities 1,345,769,746 896,083,731 

d) Non Current Liabilities 1,188,634,802 1,533,356,342 

e) Income 3,702,827,998 2,943,677,033 

f) Net Profit 310,095,691 262,732,878



Year ended 31 March 2007

41 GROUP COMPANIES
Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of Principal 

Ownership Voting Ownership Voting Activities
Interest Power Interest Power

as at as at as at as at 
Subsidiaries 31.03.2007 31.03.2007 31.03.2006 31.03.2006

Hemas Travels (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Travel Agent 
Hemas Manufacturing (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacture of FMCG Products 
Hemas Air Services (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% GSA Malaysian Airline 
Forbes Air Services (Pte) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% GSA Emirates Airline 
Hemas Aviation (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Airline Representation 
Go Asia Air Lines (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Airline Representation 
Exchange & Finance Investment (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Airline Representation 
Discover the World Marketing (Pte) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% Airline Representation 
Hemas Healthcare (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Distribution of Healthcare Products
Hemas Foods (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Import and sale of Food Products 
Hemas Corporate Services (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Corporate Secretaries 
Leisure Asia Investments Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% Investment Holding Company 
Serendib Hotels PLC (Group) 63% 61% 54% 46% Leisure Investments 
Hemas Power (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Venture Capital Company 
Hemtours (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Destination Management 

Services 
Hemas Developments (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Property Development 
Conventions Asia (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Event Management 
Peace Haven Resorts Ltd. 95% 95% 95% 95% Hotel Property 
Hemas Marketing (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Trading & Distribution 

of FMCG Products  
Spectrum Marketing (Pte) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% Dormant 
Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Distribution of Pharmaceutical 

Products
Hemas International Freight (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Freight Forwarders 
ACX International (Pvt) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Courier Services 
Hemas Clinical Solutions (Pte) Ltd. 100% 100% 100% 100% Support Services of 

Clinical Trials 
Vishwa BPO (Pte) Ltd 100% 100% - - Financial & Accounting BPO 
Hemas Hospitals (Pte) Ltd 70% 70% - - Hospital Services 

(under constructions)
Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd. 96% 96% - - Mini Hydro Power Plant 

(under constructions)
Mowbray Hotels Ltd. 89% 89% - - Hotel Property 

Associate Companies
Hela Clothing (Pte) Ltd. - - 30% 30% Garment Manufacturing 

and Exports 
Mowbray Hotels Ltd. - - 39.60% 39.60% Hotel Property 
E-Channelling Ltd. 24.6% 24.6% 24.6% 24.6% Electronic Channelling 

of Health Services 

Jointly Controlled Entity
Heladhanavi Ltd. 50% 50% 50% 50% Thermal Power Plant 
Hellman Worldwide Logistics (Pvt) Ltd 49% 49% - - Freight Forwarders 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Five year Summary

Year Ended 31st March 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 
Restated Restated Restated Restated

Rs'000

Operating Results

Group Revenue 11,778,136 9,779,338 9,275,784 6,947,710 5,706,161  

Profit Before Taxation 1,407,184 1,247,374 1,057,678 867,183 589,030 

Taxation 387,648 281,838 225,143 180,067 133,243 

Profit After Taxation 1,019,537 965,536 832,535 687,116 455,786 

Profit Attributable to Hemas Group 1,005,727 958,599 836,973 645,514 434,199 

Equity & Liabilities

Share Capital 1,088,081 1,089,679 891,296 880,000 400,000  

Reserves 951,377 778,100 1,005,281 347,986 186,666 

Accumulated Profits 3,234,682 2,430,310 1,745,396 1,655,430 1,215,519  

Minority Interest 588,527 496,967 681,897 546,380 506,803  

Non-Current Liabilities 1,597,455 1,877,932 2,182,320 1,959,218 147,115 

Current Liabilities 3,935,734 3,286,596 3,145,779 2,639,974 1,708,812 

11,395,856 10,024,762 9,651,969 8,028,988 4,164,915

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 5,739,674 5,310,437 5,333,306 4,446,460 1,786,610  

Intangible Assets 155,563 107,268 40,336 8,013 2,379 

Investments (Associates & Others) 66,771 138,082 233,259 195,745 193,734 

Other Receivables - -   -   1,672 567 

Current Assets 5,433,848 4,468,975 4,045,068 3,377,097 2,181,626

11,395,856 10,024,762 9,651,969 8,028,988 4,164,915

Key Indicators

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 9.90 9.52 8.43 6.98 4.96  

Effective Rate of Dividend (%) 25 25.0 30.0 25.0 33.3 

Dividend Cover (No. of Shares) 4.0 4.0 3.5 4.4 4.3  

Interest Cover (No. of Times) 6.1 5.4 7.8 18.5 14.6  

Net Asset Per Share (Rs.) 52.1 43.3 46.0 37.0 17.3 

Cash from Operating Activities (Rs. '000) 176,992 1,035,785 1,182,366 574,317 357,025  

Current Ratio (No. of Times) 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 

Debt/Equity (%) 56.9 62.9 80.3 88.9 22.9  

ROE (%) 21.1 24.4 26.3 28.2 26.6  



RESIDENT NON  RESIDENT TOTAL
Shareholdings number of No of Shares Percentage Number of No of Shares Percentage Number of No of Shares Percentage

shareholders (%) Shareholders (%) Shareholders (%)

1 to 1000 Shares 3,319 657,483 0.65 23 5,990 0.01 3,342 663,473 0.66

1001  to  5,000 Shares 318 682,026 0.67 12 31,450 0.03 330 713,476 0.7

5,001  to 10,000 Shares 49 346,842 0.34 2 13,625 0.01 51 360,467 0.35

10,001  to 50,000 Shares 70 1,530,561 1.51 6 160,800 0.16 76 1,691,361 1.67

50,001  to 100,000 Shares 15 1,066,812 1.05 1 63,950 0.06 16 1,130,762 1.11

100,001  to 500,000 Shares 12 2,805,930 2.77 0 0 0 12 2,805,930 2.77

500,001  to 1000,000 Shares 1 922,750 0.91 0 0 0 1 922,750 0.91

Over 1,000,000 Shares 12 82,011,665 80.96 3 11,008,240 10.87 15 93,019,905 91.83

3,796 90,024,069 88.86 47 11,284,055 11.14 3,843 101,308,124 100

Computation of % of Public Shareholding

31st March 2007 31st March 2006
Over 10% holding No. of Shares No. of Shares

A Z Holdings (Pvt) Ltd 18,152,575 18,152,575
Saraz Investments (Pvt) Ltd 17,279,207 17,279,207
Blueberry Investments (Pvt) Ltd 17,156,250 17,156,250
Amagroup (Pvt) Ltd 17,156,133 17,156,133

Directors shareholding
Mr. A N Esufally 1,145,500 1,131,125
Mr. H N Esufally 1,206,125 1,167,375
Mr. I A H Esufally 1,226,500 1,226,500
Mr. M A H Esufally 1,131,000 1,131,000
Mr. L De Mel 17,500 17,500
Mr. S J Scarff
Mr. D Bhatnagar 15,550 10,300
Mr. M E Wickramasinghe 2,250 2,250

74,488,590 74,430,215

Issued Share Capital as at 31st March 2007 101,308,124 99,801,249
Less Over 10% & Directors Shareholding 74,488,590 74,430,215

Public Holding 26,819,534 25,371,034

Public Holding as a % of Issued Share Capital 26.47% 25.42%

SHARE TRADING

Market Price 2007/06 2005/06

Highest 127.50 (02.02.07) 145.00 (25.05.05)

Lowest 99.00 (17.08.06) 91.00 (18.01.06)

As at year ended 107.00 (31.03.07) 110.75 (31.03.06)

No. of Trades 2,148 3,941 

No. of Shares Traded 6,798,100 17,085,400 

Value of the Shares Traded - (Rs.) 733,147,925 2,124,548,825

Market Capitalisation (Rs.) 11 Billion (31.03.07) 11 Billion (31.03.06)

Shareholder Information
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List of 20 Major Shareholders

MAJOR SHAREHOLDING

the twenty major shareholders as at 31st March 2007 with comparative figures for 2006.

2007 2006
No of Shares % No of Shares %

1. A Z Holdings (Private) Limited 18,152,575 17.92 18,152,575 18.20
2. Saraz Investments (Private) Limited 17,279,207 17.06 17,279,207 17.32
3. Blueberry Investments (Private) Limited 17,156,250 16.93 17,156,250 17.20
4. Amagroup (Private) Limited 17,156,133 16.93 17,156,133 17.20
5. HSBC INTL NOM LTD - SNFE - Arisaig India Fund Limited 8,042,050 7.94 7,535,750 7.56
6. Employees Provident Fund 3,518,375 3.47 3,518,375 3.53
7. Goldman Sachs International S/A Tree Line Asia Master Fund 1,961,190 1.94 - -
8. Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd - Life Fund 1,749,100 1.73 1,249,100 1.25
9. Mr. I.A.H. Esufally 1,226,500 1.21 1,226,500 1.23
10. Mr. H.N. Esufally 1,206,125 1.19 1,167,375 1.17
11. National Savings Bank 1,200,000 1.18 1,200,000 1.20
12. Mr. A.N. Esufally 1,145,500 1.13 1,131,125 1.13
13. Mr. M.A.H. Esufally 1,131,000 1.12 1,131,000 1.13
14. Akbar Brothers Limited 1,090,900 1.08 478,200 0.48
15. HSBC Intl Nominees Ltd-Hsbc Bank PLC-CMG First State Global UMBR 1,005,000 0.99 1,005,000 1.01
16. Jacey Trust Services (Private)Limited 922,750 0.91 - -
17. Cocoshell Activated Carbon Company Limited 408,575 0.40 360,975 0.36
18. The Ceylon Guardian Investment Trust Limited 399,400 0.39 - -
19. M.J.F. Exports Limited. 341,000 0.34 341,000 0.34
20. Employees Trust Fund Board 334,400 0.33

95,426,030 94.19 94,591,340 94.82 
Shares held by the balance shareholdings 4,375,219 5.81 5,209,909 5.18

Total Issued Shares 99,801,249 100.00 99,801,249 100.00

As at 31.03.07 As at 31.03.06

PUBLIC HOLDING 26.47% 25.42%

Shareholder Information



CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Total shareholders' funds plus debt and minority interest.

CAPITAL RESERVES

Reserves identified for specific purposes and considered not available for

distribution.

CURRENT RATIO

Current assets divided by current liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Conditions or situations at the Balance Sheet date, the financial effect of

which are to be determined by future events which may or may not occur.

DEBT

Interest bearing long term loans plus short term loans and overdrafts.

DEBT EQUITY RATIO

Total interest bearing borrowings divided by the total of shareholders'

funds.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The net tax effect on items which have been included in the income

statement, which  would only qualify for inclusion on a tax return at a

future date.

DIVIDEND COVER

Net profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders divided by the total

dividend paid and proposed.

ESOP (Employee Share Option Plan)

The right but not the obligation to purchase an accrued number of shares

at a fixed price within a pre-determined time period.

EQUITY

Total shareholders' funds.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

EBIT

Earnings before interest and tax.

EFFECTIVE RATE OF TAXATION

Income tax, including deferred income tax over profit before tax.

INTEREST COVER

Operating profit before interest and tax divided by the total  finance cost.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

The number of ordinary shares in issue multiplied by the market price per

share as at  the reported date.

MINORITY INTEREST

Part of the net results of operations and of  net assets of a subsidiary

attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly,

through Subsidiaries, by the Parent.

NET ASSETS PER SHARE

Shareholders funds divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue as

at the end of the year.

PRICE EARNINGS RATIO

Market price per share divided by the earnings per share.

RETURN ON EQUITY

Profit after tax, minority interest and extra ordinary items divided by

average shareholders’ funds at the beginning and end of the year.

REVENUE RESERVES

Reserves set aside for future distributions and Investments.

SEGMENT

Constituent business units grouped in terms of similarity of operations

and strategy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Total of share capital, capital reserves and revenue reserves less

preliminary and deferred Expenses.

Glossary
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that  the Fourth Annual General
Meeting of Hemas Holdings PLC will be held at the Auditorium of
the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, No. 50, Nawam Mawatha,
Colombo 2 on Thursday the 28th day of June 2007 at 3.30 p.m for
the following purpose:-

AGENDA

1. To receive and  consider  the Statements of Accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2007, together with
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To re-elect as Director, Mr. Maithri Wickremesinghe retiring
in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company 

3. To re-elect as Director, Mr. Simon J. Scarff  retiring in terms
of the  Articles of Association of the Company 

4. To pass the ordinary resolution set out below to  re-elect as a
director Mr. J.C.L De Mel who has reached the age of 70
years on 6th May 2007 and vacates office as a director of the
Company in terms of Section 210 (2) (a) of the Companies'
Act No. 7 of 2007.

"RESOLVED that Mr. J.C.L. De Mel who has reached the age
of 70 years on 6th May 2007 be and is hereby re-elected a
Director of the Company and it is hereby declared as
provided for in Section 211 (1) of the Companies’ Act No. 07
of 2007 that the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section
210 of the said  Companies’ Act shall not apply to Mr.
J.C.L.De Mel."

5 To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the
Directors to determine their remuneration. 

6. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations
to charity.

7. To consider any other business of which due notice has been
given.

By Order of the Board of

HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC 

HEMAS CORPORATE SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Secretaries

1st June 2007

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a
Proxy to attend and vote in his/her place..

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A  Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice.

Notice of Meeting
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I/We …………………………….......................................................................………………………………………….

of………………………………………………………………………........................................................................

being a Member/s of Hemas Holdings PLC do hereby appoint one of the following Directors of the Company,

Mr. Lalith De Mel                                     of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Husein Esufally                                   of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Abbas  Esufally                                   of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Imtiaz Esufally                                    of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Divyaroop Bhatnagar                         of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Murtaza Esufally                                of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Simon Scarff                                       of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Maithri Wickremesinghe                  of Colombo or failing him

Mr./Mrs.  ……………………………...........................................................…………………………………................

of………………………………………………………….............................................………………………………….

as my/our Proxy to speak and /to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Hemas Holdings PLC to be held
at 3.30 p.m. on Thursday the 28th day of June 2007 at the Auditorium of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, No 50, Nawam Mawatha,
Colombo 2 and at any adjournment thereof. 

For Against

1. To receive and  consider the Statements  of Accounts  of the  Company  together with  the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect as Director, Mr. Maithri Wickremesinghe retiring by rotation in terms of the Articles of
Association  of the Company  

3. To re-elect as Director, Mr. Simon. Scarff retiring by rotation in terms of the Articles of
Association  of the Company 

4. To re-appoint Mr. J.C.L. De Mel as a Director of the Company in terms of Section 211 (1) of the
Companies' Act no. 7 of 2007.

5. To re-appoint M/s Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company and to
authorize  the directors to determine their remuneration.

6. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations to charity.

*The Proxy may vote as he/she thinks fit on any other resolution brought before this meeting

……………............……… Date:
Signature/s

Note:

1. Please delete the inappropriate words.
2. Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.

Form of Proxy
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF FORM OF PROXY

1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name and address and by signing in the space provided.  Please fill in the
date of signature.

2. A member  entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy  to attend and vote instead of him/her.   

3. In the case of Corporate Members, the Form of Proxy must be completed under the Common Seal, which should be affixed and attested in
the manner prescribed by the Articles of Association /Statutes.

4. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should also accompany the completed Form of Proxy.

5. the completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at No. 36, Bristol Street, Colombo 1 not less than Forty Eight (48) hours before the time
appointed for the meeting.    

Form of Proxy
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